Public Document Pack

Statutory Joint Scrutiny Committee

Thursday, 7 September 2006 4.00 p.m.
Town Hall, Runcorn

AGENDA
Item No. Page No.

1. AGENDA 1-6

In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 1

St Helens Council HALTO

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Town Hall, St. Helens, MerSeyside, WA10 1HP
Telephone 01744 456110 (Tina Molyneux)

Warrington Borough Counci] §

Agenda

STATUTORY JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
5 BOROUGHS PARTNERSHIP NHS TRUST

Proposals Relating to Improving Services
for Adults with Mental Health Needs in
Halton, St. Helens and Warrington

Date: Thursday, 7 September 2006  Time: 4.00 p.m. Venue: Civic Suite, Runcorn Town Hall,
Hall Heath Road
Runcorn, Cheshire WA7 5TN

Membership
Halton 3 Councillors Cargill (Chairman), Inch and Loftus
St.Helens 3 Councillors Bowden (Vice Chairman), McGuire and Stephanie Topping

Warrington 3 Councillors Banner, Hoyle and Johnson
Wright (Substitute for Councillor Banner)

Item Title Page

1 Apologies for Absence

2 Minutes of the meeting held on 24 August 2006 1

3 Declarations of Interest from Members Verbal Report
4 Response to Public Consultation (Mental Health Strategies Report) To Follow

5 Feedback from visit to Norfolk To be Tabled
6 Financial Information from the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust To Follow

7 Statutory Joint Scrutiny Committee - Draft Report To Follow



Page 2



Page 3

STATUTORY JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
5 BOROUGHS PARTNERSHIP NHS TRUST PROPOSALS RELATING TO IMPROVING
SERVICES FOR ADULTS WITH MENTAL HEALTH NEEDS IN
HALTON, ST. HELENS AND WARRINGTON

Minutes of the meeting of this Committee held on
24 August 2006

(Members Present) Halton Council

Councillors Cargill, Inch and Loftus

St. Helens Council

Councillors McGuire, Stephanie Topping and Sheldon

Warrington Council

Councillors Banner, Hoyle and Johnson

(Not Present) St. Helens Council

Councillor Bowden

(Also Present) Halton Council

Lindsay Smith, Divisional Manager, Mental Health, Health and Community
Dwayne Johnson, Strategic Director, Health and Community

St. Helens Council

Carole Swift, Service Manager Carers and Scrutiny
Peter Hughes, Head of Policy
Mike Wyatt, Assistant Director, Performance and Business Support

Warrington Council

Bryan Magan, Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordinator

Helen Sumner, Strategic Director, Community Services

Roger Millns, Head of Service, Mental Health, Learning Disabilities and
Corporate Social Services

Tina Molyneux, (Clerk to the Committee),
Senior Democratic Services Officer, St. Helens Council

14 APOLOGY FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Bowden. Councillor
Sheldon attended as his substitute.

15 MINUTES

* Resolved that the minutes of the meeting held on 10 August, 2006
be approved and signed. Arising from the Minutes:

Minute 12(6) - the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust provide a written response
to the written questions submitted by a member of the public.

1



16

17

Page 4
STATUTORY JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Roger Millns, Head of Service, Mental Health, Learning Disabilities and Corporate
Social Services, Warrington Council informed the Committee that:

The 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust letter referenced him by name regarding
delayed discharges and he believed misrepresented what he had said.

The letter from the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust included:

“The Trust is already developing a revised discharge strategy and process in
conjunction with partner agencies as described to the Joint Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on 10 August. As stated by Mr Roger Milins of Warrington Social Care
Services on that occasion, delayed discharge relates to a variety of issues and
needs, many of which are already within the purview of the Local Authority to
address. However, it is recognised that the network of support services may need

- toinclude a wider range of options and to make positive use of existing

mainstream services, currently available to all people, as part of support packages
for those appropriately discharged from in-patient care.”

Roger Millns informed the Committee:

“That the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust’s own audit of delayed discharges
identified that most reasons were not to do with Local Authority responsibility as
their Chief Executive had intimated in her response to this issue but were within
the Trust’s own powers do so something about. Also that in Warrington there
were weekly meetings between the Local Authority and 5 Boroughs Partnership
NHS Trust to review delayed discharges and that, currently, there were no delayed
discharges which were as a result of Local Authority inaction or lack of funding.

He went on to suggest that we needed to work on this together now - not wait until
the model was implemented.”

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS

No Declarations of Interest from Members were made.

Councillor Banner stated that she was a Non Executive Director of the North
Cheshire Hospitals NHS Trust.

PRESENTATION BY PRIMARY CARE TRUSTS (PCT’s). WARRINGTON, ST.
HELENS AND HALTON

A presentation was made to the Committee by Rob Vickers (Halton and St. Helens
PCT), Mike Treharne (Halton and St. Helens PCT) and Tim Deeprose (Warrington
PCT) on Proposals Relating to Improving Services for Adults with Mental Health
Needs in Halton, St Helens and Warrington. The Presentation outlined a written
response to issues raised by the Committee in relation to the following:

. Impact on Service Users and Carers

. Financial Implications

. Bed Reductions

. Commissioning Strategy

. Consultation Process

. Eligibility Criteria

. Impact on Social Care Services

5



18

Page 5
STATUTORY JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Timescales

Out of Hours Arrangements

Ashton, Leigh and Wigan

St Helens, Halton and Warrington PCT Specific

Members raised questions in relation to the presentation as follows:

Impact anq Funding of Crisis Emergency Admission

The proposed model did not include Psychiatric Intensive Care Provision
Out of Borough Placements

Lack of clarity due to accounting practices

Shared services with Knowsley

Infrastructure in Halton compared to Warrington and St. Helens

Concern regarding timing, phasing and infrastructure

~ Proposed Impact on Older Adults

Disinvestment

Plans for refurbishment in Halton
Capital Funding

Cost and impact of retraining of staff
Out of Hours Services

Financial Information
Resolved'that:
(1) the presentation be noted; and

(2) the representatives from the PCT’s be thanked for their
attendance.

FURTHER ACTION AND FURTHER INFORMATION REQUIRED FOLLOWING

PRESENTATION

A verbal report was given which advised the Committee that the following would be
submitted at the meeting to be held on 7 September 2006.

Response to Public Consultation (Mental Health Strategies Report)
Feedback from visit to Norfolk
Draft Report

Financial Information from the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust

The Committee discussed the content of the draft report which would include the
following:

Strengths of the Model

CAS



Page 6

STATUTORY JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Impact on Service Users and Carers - younger adults of a working age, older
and younger people
Financial Implications - Lack of clarity
Capital Issues
Services explained in Model
- Access to Services, tightening of eligibility criteria
- In-patient services
- Resource and Recovery Centre Model
- Function of CMHT’s in the future
Impact on Other Services
(i) Health Services
(i) Council Services
(iii) Ment'al Health Services
Partnership Working
Consultation Process Issues
Implementation of Proposals
- timescales
- infrastructure
- transitional
- training of Staff
Borough Specific Issues
Findings
Recommendations

Resolved that the report be noted.

-000-



Page 7
DRAFT

Statutory Joint Scrutiny Committee

‘5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust

Proposals Relating to Improving Services for Adults with Mental Health Needs

In Halton, St Helens and Warrington

DRAFT REPORT

1. Introduction

This report sets out the findings of the Joint Scrutiny Committee established by

* Halton Borough Council, St Helens Council and Warrington Borough Council to
consider the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust's Proposals to Improve Services for
Adults with Mental Health Problems (summarised in the document “Change for the
Better”). The report sets out the background to the consultation process, the
methodology employed by the committee and the committee’s findings in relation to
various aspects of the proposals. The report closes with a conclusion and
recommendations for the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust.

The committee would like to formally thank all those who have contributed to the
scrutiny process, and provided information for the committee, which has helped in its
deliberations. The committee acknowledge that much of the information has been
provided to demanding timescales, and would like to thank respondents for the
efforts that they have made.

2. Background

On 1 June 2006 the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust launched a consultation
document “Change for the Better — Improving Services for Adults with Mental Health
Needs”. The consultation document proposed changes to mental health services for
adults in the four boroughs of Halton, Knowsley, St Helens and Warrington. The date
initially identified for the end of the statutory consultation process was 24 August.

Three of the four local authorities — Halton, St Helens and Warrington — considered

that the issues identified in the proposals would represent a substantial variation in

the provision of health services in their area. An agreement was reached to form a

Statutory Joint Scrutiny Committee. Knowsley was invited to join the committee but
did not participate.

The committee met on 20 July, 10 August, 24 August and 7 September. The
committee was later informed that the timescale for response for statutory agencies,
including the committee, was extended to 15 September.

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06 1



Page 8
DRAFT

3. Methodology

The committee was established in accordance with the “Local Authority (Overview
and Scrutiny Committee Health Scrutiny Functions) Regulations 2002”. The
committee comprised of three elected members from each of the local authorities
involved, and the decision was made by each local authority to waive political
proportionality.

The committee agreed the following terms of reference:-

» To establish a statutory joint committee to scrutinise proposals from the 5
Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust to improve services for people with
mental health needs in the boroughs of Halton, St Helens and
Warrington.

e To undertake the scrutiny of proposals in accordance with the Local
Authority (Overview and Scrutiny Committee Health Scrutiny Functions)
Regulations 2002, and the direction to Local Authority (Overview and
Scrutiny Committee, Health Scrutiny Functions) July 2003.

e To complete a report outlining the statutory committee’s views of the
proposals and to make recommendations to the 5 Boroughs Partnership
NHS Trust where relevant.

e To monitor the Trust’s responses to the report, and agree mechanisms
for the ongoing monitoring of future changes to mental health services.

The committee agreed protocols and methodology for its working practices. Having
read copies of the consultation document “Change for the Better” (attached as
Appendix 1), the committee identified key issues and established an outline work
programme, taking into account the tight timescales for the work.

The committee identified a list of key issues and wrote to the 5 Boroughs Partnership
NHS Trust and invited them to attend the meeting and respond to these issues. A
copy of the 5 Boroughs Trust response is attached as Appendix 2.

Similarly, the committee identified key issues for PCT commissioners in each of the
boroughs, and wrote to them with a list of key issues. The PCT’s response is
attached as Appendix 3.

A press release was issued in each of the three boroughs, and written responses to
this were considered by the committee. The committee also considered a range of
other information including:-

e Afinancial report presented by the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust.

* Areport of public consultation undertaken by Mental Health Strategies
working in association with the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust.

e Reports of a visit by officers and some service users to Norfolk and
Waverley to see the model in operation.

Mikel\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06 2



4.1

4.1.1.

41.2

Page 9
DRAFT

Findings of the Committee

Impact on Service Users
General

The committee welcomes the aspirations of the model to see fewer people admitted
to hospital and more people provided with services in the community. The committee
also supports the model’s intention of ensuring stays in hospital are as short as
possible, and only those requiring hospital admission are admitted.

The committee is concerned, however, that the proposals in their present form do not
satisfactorily explain how these aspirations will be achieved. The committee’s
concerns are outlined in this report, and explained below. The committee is
concerned that deficiencies in the document and proposals, may actually lead to a
decrease in support and services for vulnerable adults with mental health problems,
particularly those living in the community.

Particular Client Groups

The committee notes that the document aims to improve services for adults with
mental health needs, and in section 1.3 of the consultation paper it explains a
number of service areas which are excluded from the process. The committee were
not able, therefore, to formally examine these services, but it has become clear
during the scrutiny process, that there are many linkages between all these services
and whilst acknowledging that work is being carried out in a number of areas, the
committee would still wish to make the following comments about a number of
groups which are not properly dealt with in the proposals.

»  Dual Diagnosis — the committee are not satisfied with the arrangements for
service users with a dual diagnosis of mental health problems and alcohol
and/or drug problems. However, they do acknowledge the 5 Boroughs
Partnership NHS Trust’'s commitment in Section 2.3 ii of Appendix 2
assuring that this group will be given a high priority.

e Adults in secure environments and psychiatric intensive care units — the
committee understands that adults in these environments are being dealt
with separately, however, the proposals do seem to have some linkages
with these inpatient services and the committee are disappointed that these
have not been properly considered.

e Personality Disorder — The committee feel that more attention should have
been paid to adults with a personality disorder as this is likely to impact on
community services.

*  Young People — the committee welcomed the high priority afforded to this in
section 2.3 appendix 2, but are concerned that the issue of young people
being admitted to adult wards is not being satisfactorily addressed, and the
reduction in in-patient beds may have some impact on young people over
the age of 16.

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06 . 3



Page 10
DRAFT

e Older People — the commiittee is particularly concerned that the proposals do
not effectively meet the needs of older people, and do not link effectively
with the Older People’s Commissioning Strategy for the three boroughs.

The committee note and support the comments about ensuring that people
are not discriminated against in terms of their age, however, they believe
that this does not properly reflect the complex needs of older people,
particularly those older people requiring inpatient services. The committee
continue to have concerns about the proposals to have older people and
younger adults on the same inpatient wards.

The committee acknowledged the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust’s
comments relating to the developing a Commissioning Strategy for Older
People with Mental Health Needs, but feel that this should have been
properly considered and factored in to the proposals before they were
published.

The committee feel that the issue of older people requires much more
detailed attention, particularly in relation to inpatient settings.

4.2 Financial Implications

' SECTION MAY REQUIRE A POSSIBLE RE-WRITE WHEN DETAILED FINANCIAL INFO
IS RECEIVED '

The committee acknowledged that the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust need to
ensure financial balance, and would wish to support the Trust in achieving this.

The committee have not been provided with thorough and detailed financial
information about the present and proposed services. Whilst acknowledging some of
the complexities of these issues, the committee is surprised that the financial
information is “continuing to finessed” at such a late stage in the consultation
process.

The Committee is aware that the overall level of investment in Mental Health
Services is significantly below the national average in Halton and St. Helens.
Although investment is close to the national average in Warrington, Warrington has
significant ongoing commitments to ex-Winwick Hospital residents who still live in the
Borough. In the light of this overall situation the proposals contained in the Model of
Care to significantly reduce expenditure on services and to dramatically reduce the
number of inpatient beds, is in the Committee’s view, likely to be impossible to
achieve.

The committee has made the following findings in relation to the financial implications
based on the information it had access to :-

e There is no detailed financial information in relation to the savings which
are to be achieved from back office functions (£1m) and the cost
releasing efficiencies savings (CRES) of £2.6m. It is not clear how these
savings will impact on adult mental health and other relevant service
areas.

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06 4



4.3

Page 11
DRAFT

e The model of care proposals rely heavily on capital investment. The
committee support concerns about the inadequacy of present facilities in
the three boroughs, and welcome the confirmation that capital funding for
some of the developments has been achieved, but the fact that other
capital funding is still subject to bids at this late stage in the consultation
processes causes concern. The committee note that there do not appear
to be effective contingencies in place if the capital funding is not secured.

e Transitional resources — the committee feel that the issue of transitional
resources has not been properly addressed. Such a significant change
would require major investment, and the committee is not assured that
appropriate resources have been identified and/or put in place.

e  Ashton, Leigh & Wigan — the situation relating to Ashton, Leigh and
Wigan is difficult for the committee to understand. The committee
understands from various professional that the situation is complex, but
again, the committee feels that this should have been resolved prior to
the finalising of the proposals and the consultation process. The
Committee is concerned that the savings targets appear to be allocated
to only four of the five boroughs served by the Trust as Ashton, Leigh
and Wigan have been excluded.

e Out of Area Placements — the committee feels that the large reduction in
inpatient beds, may actually have implications for both Primary Care
Trusts and Social Care Services in financing additional out of area
placements. The committee is not satisfied with the 5 Boroughs
Partnership NHS Trust’s response that alternative services will be in
place, particularly in the early years of the model.

e The committee is confused about the issue of indirect costs which need
to be apportioned across different boroughs. Again, the committee felt
that this should have been addressed as part of the planning process,
and before the consultation stage was reached.

The limited financial information available to the committee indicates significant
disinvestment in each of the three boroughs. These shifts in expenditure are likely to
have a significant impact on services in the borough. When this is set against the
relatively low spend on mental health services which the 5 Boroughs Partnership
NHS Trust refers to, the committee has difficulty in seeing how the model can lead to
improved services for service users and carers.

Access to Services

The committee supports the view that community based services normally offer the
better outcomes for service users and carers. However, the committee have strong
concerns about the fact that the reduction in inpatient beds, coupled with a significant
decrease in funding proposed, will see a tightening of eligibility criteria which will
impact on people’s access to mental health services. It seems clear that if the
following factors are combined:-

e  Areduction in the number of inpatient beds,
* Anincrease in the number of people receiving services in the community,

- 9

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06 v 5



4.4,

Page 12
DRAFT

e An overall decrease in staffing,
e Anincrease in staffing in inpatient services,
e Anoverall significant decrease in budgets,

That this will lead to a greater rationing of services. It is difficult to see how this fits
with the promotion of early intervention and community based services.

The committee also have concerns about proposals to have access and advice
centres in each borough. The committee is pleased that this issue is being actively
considered by the Trust, but is disappointed about the lack of detail in the response,
as it believes single points of access may actually serve to exclude some service
users, and that other models of access i.e. through primary care, may actually do
more to promote the types of services being proposed in the model.

Inpatient Services

The committee understands that if community services are enhanced, and
inappropriate admissions are avoided, then the number of inpatient beds will
decrease. However, the committee has serious concerns about the proposed
reduction in inpatient beds. The committee has the following concerns:-

e There does not appear to be any phasing of the reduction and the
assumption leads to dramatic reductions in Warrington and Halton, with the
number of beds in Halton reducing to 38 from 60, and in Warrington to 32
from 60.

e The committee notes that the number of beds is the lowest level
recommended by the Royal College of Psychiatrists, as stated by the 5
Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust, but the committee feels that achieving
these lower level figures may not be realistic in the three boroughs.

e The 5 Boroughs Trust acknowledge Appendix 2, Section 2.1 ii that this level
of beds is only recommended when the appropriate level of community
services is in place. The committee is not satisfied that these services are in
place in the three boroughs, and is concerned that the proposals will reduce
Community Services further.

e The recommended figures apply to the number of beds for adults under 65.
As the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust are presently proposing to include
inpatient beds for older people in the numbers, then it would appear that the
actual number of beds available to adults (excluding older people) would fall
below the minimum.

¢ In Section 2.1 ii of Appendix 2, the Trust states that many of the community
services are “already in place”. If this is the case, then the committee is
uncertain why inpatient facilities are presently experiencing levels of over-
occupancy, and how these community based services will manage when the
number of inpatient beds have significantly decreased. The Committee
believe that current bed usage should be demonstrably reduced before
further bed reductions can be safely achieved.

oen :

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06



4.5

4.6

Page 13
DRAFT

e The committee note the intention to combine inpatient services for adults
and older people, and acknowledge 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust
statements about age discrimination. However, the committee’s view is that
this over-simplifies the complexities of caring for adults and older people
with mental health needs in the same inpatient settings.

e The committee has concerns about the needs for young people to be
admitted to adult inpatient services, and whilst acknowledging that this is not
part of the consultation process, the committee believes that some issues do
need to be factored in to the proposals.

e The committee are pleased that the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust are
proposing an increase in staffing in the inpatient units, coupled with the
reduction in the numbers of beds, as this should lead to better services for
those inpatient residents. However, the committee has concerns about the
impact that this will have on community based services, as it would appear
to be Ilkely to increase the staffing reductions in these areas.

e The committee is concerned that there is a lack of clear information and
apparent analysis to demonstrate the impact of reduction in beds on
community services, and how this will be managed.

Resource and Recovery Centres (RRC)

The committee broadly welcomed the proposals to have resource and recovery
centres in each of the boroughs, and believe that the model of multi-agency services
offers the best outcomes for service users and carers. However, the committee have
a number of concerns about the proposals:-

e  Capital funding for the development of the centres has yet to be secured in a
number of cases, and there does not appear to be a clear contingency plan
should this funding not be available.

¢ The significant drop in the number of beds does not seem to be realistic or
achievable.

o Staffing issues are not clear, and the increasing staff in resource and
recovery centres is likely to have a negative impact on Community Services.

e The mixing of older people and younger adults in inpatient settings does not
seem to have been properly thought through.

* The committee has concerns about the capacity of the resource and
recovery centres, particularly to provide community based services.

Assertive Outreach

The committee have noted Appendix 2, section 5, the comparison of assertive
outreach services. The committee notes the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust’s
comments that services are being provided at higher levels of input than that for
which funding has been obtained. However, the committee is concerned that in
Warrington and St Helens the model does not allow for any increase in assertive

~

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06 7



4.7

4.8

4.9

Page 14
DRAFT

outreach, with the number on caseload remaining the same. The committee would
have expected that with the reduction in inpatient beds, more pressures might have
been placed on assertive outreach, and that further resources would need to be
identified.

Community Mental Health Teams

The committee acknowledges the commissioning strategies sees the need for “a
team of multi-disciplinary practitioners providing ongoing care and support to people
with serious mental health problems”. The committee is surprised that the role of
such a team has not been more clearly thought out prior to the publication of the
model, and disappointed with the response from the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS
Trust that detailed operational issues will be progressed locally with LA and Trust
staff.” This may lead to an inconsistency in approach across the three boroughs and
this appears to be one of the issues which the model was seeking to address.

Impact on Other Mental Health Services

The committee acknowledged that other aspects of mental health services are not
part of the consultation process, but feel that the proposals contain issues which will
have clear implications for other services, particularly through the cost releasing
efficiencies savings and back office savings, and the committee believes that these
may have impact on a number of relevant services including:-

Services for people with a duel diagnosis,
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services,
Psychiatric intensive care services,

Secure services.

Impact on Council and Other Health Services

As the model states that it aims to ensure closer working relationships with partner
agencies such as “PCTs, Social Services, Housing Departments, voluntary agencies
and others”, then the committee are surprised that very little consideration seems to
have been given to the impact of the model on those services. In their response to
the committee, the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust 6.1 Appendix 2 do not provide
any detailed information about the impact on Council services, and the committee
has similar concerns for other Health agencies. The committee’s concerns can be
summarised as follows:-

e There is possible impact in relation to out of area placements.

» The tightening of eligibility criteria is likely to lead to increased pressures on
social care services and increased demands on Primary Care services.

» Theincrease in community services may well lead to implications for
housing providers.

* The impact on Local Authority staff seconded to, or working closely with, the
5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust have not been properly considered.

-3

Mikelreports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06 8



4.10

4.1

Page 15
DRAFT

Staffing

It is clear to the committee that the proposals have significant staffing implications.
The committee were anxious that there seemed to be a lack of clarity about the
number and nature of posts to be deleted to secure the savings across front line
services and support service staff. Although pleased with the proposals to increase
staffing in inpatient settings to improve the quality of therapeutic work, the committee
believes that there is an inconsistency in that any increase in staffing in inpatient
services will lead to a greater decrease in staffing in community based services. It is
therefore difficult to see how community services could be improved, and can
manage more cases.

The committee also believed that a change such as this needs to be accompanied by
a significant investment in staff development and training, and they have not been
able to identify clear plans for this.

Partnership Working

The Committee’s view is that the proposals appear to have been developed by the 5
Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust in isolation of the wider primary care and social
care community. The key requirement of the Commissioning Strategy for the three
boroughs concerned is to redesign services on a Whole Systems basis. The
Committee is surprised that the model does not appear to have been developed in an
effective partnership, particularly as developing a recovery and social inclusion
approach clearly requires full partnership with local authority and other health
services.

Consultation Process

~ SECTION WILL NEED TO BE RE-WRITTEN TO INCLUDE FINDINGS OF PUBLIC

CONSULTATION WHEN AVAILABLE.

The committee acknowledged that the consultation process is in accordance with the
requirements of legislation relating to consultation. The committee would, however,
support the view of the PCTs (Section 8 Appendix 3) that the application of the
statutory minimum 12 week consultation period, in this case, has generated “undue
haste”.

The committee’s view is that this weakness has been compounded by the lack of
robust and accessible information to support the consuitation process.

Implementation of Proposals

The committee feel that the timescales for the implementation of the proposals
require further, more detailed consideration. The committee were informed by the 5
Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust that the original start date of October would be
delayed until early in the next year, and they were later informed by the Primary Care
Trust (Appendix 3 Section 8) that this would now be delayed until April 2007. The
committee welcomes the review of timescales but feels that the targets for
implementation are particularly challenging, and in the light of the issues identified in

..h o 9

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06 9



71

7.2

7.3.

Page 16
DRAFT

this report, timescales need to be more carefully considered and a model developed
for the phased and effective implementation across all three boroughs.

The committee wasalso of the view that proposals represent a significant variation in
services, and they have not been able to identify clear plans to resource and
implement the changes. In the light of the proposed timescale for implementation,
the committee are particularly concerned about this, and feel that the identification of
additional resources from the Primary Care Trust of £0.5m to fund transitional work
may not be sufficient. For a major service change like this, the committee would
have expected detailed project plans to be put in place.

Borough Specific Issues

The committee identified a number of borough specific issues:-
Halton

There is confusion about an alcohol detoxification bed — the situation appears to be
that a bed has been in existence although it has never been properly funded or
commissioned. The bed is not contained in the proposals, and members of the
committee are concerned about the impact on services.

The 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust has also been providing services for Halton
and Frodsham, and‘there is a lack of clarity about how this will be resolved in the
future, and the impact that this will have on Halton’s services. Associated proposals
would see the cost of a psychiatric intensive care bed being made to the borough of
£100,000 per annum (shared with St Helens).

Warrington

Associated proposals would see the cost of a psychiatric intensive care bed of
£200,000 per annum for the borough. There is an issue of non-recurring financial
support from the PCT which the committee feels needs to be clarified and addressed.
St. Helens

The committee noted that the reduction in inpatient beds in St Helens had been
minimised by the closure of a hospital ward shortly before the consultation process
commenced.

An additional cost of £100,000 per annum has been identified for a psychiatric
intensive care bed (shared with Halton)

Conclusion

In the time available, the joint committee has thoroughly scrutinised the proposals
contained in the “Change for the Better” document.

The committee has found that the model in its present form has a number of
deficiencies:-

) 1%

Mike\reports\SBoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08:06 4 10



Page 17
DRAFT

e A potentially negative impact on many service users and carers; with fewer
services available and a tighter rationing of those services.

e Potential negative impact on a number of associated client groups,
particularly older people;

e Lack of clear financial information and plans;

e Lack of clear sources of capital funding and contingency plans / alternative
proposals if this is not secured;

e  Significant reductions in investment and staffing across the three boroughs;

e Changes in arrangements to access to services which would be likely to
lead to tighter rationing of services;

e  Significant reductions in the number of inpatient beds, possibly below the
minimum recommendations;

e The lack of community based services being in place to properly support the
reduction of inpatient beds;

e The lack of clarity about the role of community mental health teams;

e The lack of clarity about the impact on other Local Authorities’ services, and
their ability to respond to changes;

e The lack of clarity in relation to other Health services, particularly Primary
Care, and their ability to respond to changes;

e The impact which the model might have on other mental health services in
the three boroughs;

e The lack of clarity about staffing proposals;

. e The haste with which the consultation process has been conducted:;
e The timescales for implementation of the proposals;
e The lack of clear implementation plans and resourcing for transition;

e The failure to properly consider other models of service.

Taking all of these issues into account, the committee has formed a view that the
proposal in its present form would not be in the interests of the Health Services in the
area of the three local authorities.

9, Recommendations

The Statutory Joint Scrutiny Committee makes the following recommendations to the
5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust:-

-1

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06 11



Page 18
DRAFT

9.1. Recommendation 1

The model, in its present form, is not in the interest of Health services in Halton, St
Helens and Warrington. The model should therefore not be implemented in its
present form.

9.2 Recommendation 2

If the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust wish to implement the model, then the
following factors should be addressed prior to the implementation:-

Clarity of financial implications.

Clarity and securing of associated capital funding. If capital funding is not
available, contingency plans should be put in place.

Access to services should be reviewed and the most effective model,
engaging all partners, should be agreed.

The reduction in inpatient services should be accompanied by a
corresponding increase in community based services, and a phased
implementation of any reduction in bed numbers should be agreed.

Consideration should be given as to how the needs of older people in
inpatient services will be properly met.

The role of community mental health teams in the new structure should be
clarified.

The impact on other Council services of the proposals should be clarified
and agreed with local authority partners.

The impact on other Health services should be clarified and agreed with
other partners, notably Primary Care providers.

The impact on other mental health services associated with the proposals,
and any implications, should be clarified.

Staffing proposals should be clearly identified.
Proposals should be developed in full partnership with all interested parties.
A proper implementation plan should be put in place and available, and

appropriate infrastructure and resources must be available to implement
what is a significant change effectively.

12

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06 12



Page 19
DRAFT

9.3. Recommendation 3

The 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust should respond formally to the Committee
about the issues raised in the report and the recommendations

The contact officer for this report is Mike Wyatt, Assistant Director, Performance and
Business Support, St Helens Council, Adult Social Care and Health, Gamble Building,
Victoria Square, St Helens WA10 1DY. Telephone 01744 456550.

APPENDICES :
ONE - Change for the Better.
TWO - Response of 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust
to Statutory Joint Scrutiny Committee.
THREE - Response of Primary Care Trust to Statutory

Joint Scrutiny Committee

i3

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06 13



Page 20



APPEND\X |

sa1das1mwuys
YijeaH |eauaw
BUN0GP ¢

SUj JOJ

Sbueyo

S SHN

RSO0 24ONd

diysiauzied sybnoiog g

3N syu-diysiaupedsybnoloqs mmm aisgapp
ynsyu-diysisupedsybnologs@by lewg
¢S0¥99 52610 xed

¥60799 GZ610 WOd IUiN

000¥99 62610 suoydajal

YM8 ZYM
uojBuLIBA
HOIMUIM

aueT suyjjoH
9SNOH YJed SuljjoH
slspenbpesy jsns)

IR SHN

JITY] diysiaulleq sybnolog g

1n°00°saifsjelsuyi|eay|ejuai mmm a)Sqap
100} §82 1910 suoydajay

980 O£
Jajssyouepy

$9003

192118 Laqyy

9Snoy uosiawsg
saibejeng uiesH [ejuapy

Sar8aiways
Ya|esH jeiusawi

Aspuag uyor Aq payddns pue usye; senid @

15



Page 22

0€
6¢
x4
514
Sl

oL

ON abed

&1xau suaddey jeumy 8

&juiyy nofop yeym 2

Zlapow mau ayj Joj Aed M oypp 9
pasapisuoa am suondo 19430 §

|apow maN b

uonen

euayl ¢

S [euo

juawnoop jo asoding z

uonanposu| |
piomaio4

uoioag

SIUSIUOD




Page 23

900z Aepy
annoaxg ey
Aauqroy yupne

"S|esodoud 1o uo SUBWWOD INOA BUIAI@al 0} PIBAMIO} YOO} SAA

‘pIemio) A0 0} sn salidsul Jey) auo st Juswdojensp
pue ymoib jo sbewt jey | "woo|q |Ing Ul SIamoy} Jo die sebew Jeje| pue
‘mous ay} ybnouy; Buiysnd 19019 Jo st JoA09 Juoly By} uo abew ay),

‘rejap asow by suejd JNo dofanap am SE SMaIA
1noA Jo JUN0JoE )E} UBY} UED SAA "BMEW 0} BABY NOA SJUSLUWOD JBYM
leay o} pue ‘seap) asay} s1eys o] Juem am arsym sbejs ay) Je mou ale
S\ '9AIJ03Y5 pue dqEUIBISNS ‘B[GISSOIIE I0W SSIIAISS IN0 ayeul 0}
Hliom am Aem ay} sbueyo o} sigsodold 9say) Lo PAIOM SARY oM SNy L

181199 op pinoo am sbuly) aie a1ay) 1By} }IGNOP OU Ul SN SBAEI)
SJOBJUOD |ENPIAIPUI JO ‘SWINIOY 135N ‘SJujejdiiod BJA YOeqPaD) ISAOMOH
‘sabueyo aansod axew o} Ajige o o} sayysa) Aueinbal uojesiuebio
1no 0} ul sawod jeyj sisuped pue s1a1ed pue SIasN WOl ¥Ieqpasd
"SaA|9sIN0 19npuod am Aem sy noge sBujy} pooBb Auew aie aleyy

"usyepspun Bulag si uoljeynsuo9 siyj Aym
S| Jeyl pue ‘molIowo) papasu 24 ||Im Jeym JapIsuod o} osie jnq ‘Aepo}
papeau s| Jeym apiaoid o) Ajjiqisuodsal 1no jo ped s) | ‘sisuped Jayjo
Pue jjes ‘sialed 'sIasn ylm 1aY}al0) }10m oM pUE 'JUSWIUOIAUS jB100S
pue jeojod Buibueys Jaas ue ul siy) op spp uebing pue uojBulieps
‘'sugia 1§ ‘As|smouy| 'uojey jo ajdoad sy} o} sedMSS pajje pue
Wjeay |eyusw sapiaoid Ajuaund jsnil SHN diysisuped sybnosog g

"sjuslsje
859U} ([ urejuoo jJuswinoop siy} ul Ino jas siesodoid ayy ,Buluesw
OU 3ABY SS3VINS pue 'JUSWSASIYOE ‘Juswenoidwl Se SpIom yons
‘ssa1B01d pue ymouB |enunuos Jnoylm, ey} PIES OYM LIYUEI] SEM )|

900 ¥SNBnY Yipz oty U

9002 dunr 3si ayj wiodj uni
[IIm uoneynsuon o.:nzlmmc L




Page 24

"S3JIAI9S AINJ8S @

pue '‘paseq uosud ale Jey} S99IAISS JNpe o

ualpjiyo e

elluswisp se yons sassauj| oluebio yum ajdoad sspjo e
Spasu asnsiw 32UeISQNS PUB [OLOJJE UM SYNpPE o
sanliqestp Buluies| yjm synpe o

110} 9S0Y} Se yons
S90IAISS Jsi|eIoads Joyjo INOgE Mje) Jou SB0p JUSWNIoP SIY|

‘uo|ssaidsp
JluEW pue BlUa1ydozIyas se yans sassau)| [ejuaw Buunpus
PUE sSnoiISs pue ‘Ajaixue pue uoissaidap Se yons suolpuod
yleay [ejusw uowwod aaey oym s|doad spnjpour asay)
‘aldwexa 104 "S80ISS Yjjeay [ejusw wesysulew Aq jaw
Aljensn ale ey} spasu yjesy [ejuaw saey oym (Usslybio
lano pabe) synpe uo oq Ajuo |jim JuaLINIOP SIY} JO SND0) BY |

"JuUBWINo0p siy} ul pauifino sjesodold ay)
Aq pejoaye Jou sed1MSs JBYIO SaYUSPl PUE SIy) Salensnyl
molaq ydesB ay jop am jey) asow jo| € si 19y} —Jebpnq |e10}
no jo Jspenb auo jnoge 0} junowe Asy} ey paisquiawal
9q pjnoys ¥ inq ‘op am jeym jo yed juepodw) Alea e ale
juswinaop siy uf Jnoge Buiyje} aie am jeY) SSOIAISS Y|

SI3A0D JUBWNJOP SIUI JeyM

‘sueyd ano bujpiebai smalA 1noA jno puy
0} Juem ujebe am ‘sjesodoid ino pauiejdxa saey am aouQ

‘)l Op O} Juem sm Aym e
0p O] JUEM BM MOl o

11 Op O] JUEM DM USUM o
J Op 0} Juem am asoym e

Op 0] Juem am jeym e

‘noA o} urejdxa ||im )| "Ye)s pue sialed ‘s1asn a0IAIaS 0} BuILS)s)|
JO }insal e SE Op O} JUEM M JEUM SUIINO [IM JUSWINI0P SIY |

lie @noge pue

JIBWN20P SIY} INoqy

‘wisy) yum saibe
pue sjuswwod 9say) 0} Paudjsl| dAeY /A "op 0} pakojduwis
a1am Aay} syse} ay) op o} way} sjgeua o} dn paay aq o}
$80In0sal pue awl pue ‘sajol 118y} spoddns yey) Bujnen o}
ssadoe juem Aay) ‘sqof J1ay) op way) disy pue uiopow ale
Jey} SJUSWIUOIIAUS Ui Y10M 0} Juem ASY) Sh Pj0) SABY SIaqUISLU
Helg “ared Jisy) Buipiebal suolsiosp ||B Ul paAjoAul Ajny ag
pue wsay) o} suaddey jeym JAAO |0JJU0D 3I0W SABY O} JUBM
A8y "ssaooe pue puejsiapun o} Ases aJe jey) ‘sawoy 118y} 0}
|eoo| ‘sadialas Ajenb ybiy aa1adal o} Juem Asy) sn pjo} aney
SI3IED N3y} puUe S19SN SJIAISS JNSAI B SY '}SNI] 9y} JO) oM
Oym 3s0y} pue Jsnij 8y} LIoJ) SBDIAISS SAI903) Oym ajdoad
Bu} yiog 0} pauajsi| BABY aMm Z0OZ Ul PSJESIO 9I3M aM 90UIS

noA o} fuualsi

‘saAnejuasasdal yay) pue sdnoib yejs ‘sieles
JIay} ‘s1asn SDIAISS INO Y)IM SUOISSNISIP SWIOS USYeuapuUn
Apealje aney spp “seoinas yjesy |ejusw ynpe Apenb ybiy
apiaoid am moy Buinoidw jo Aem 3saq oy} S| 9AsIeq ‘S1 Dd
pajoaye ayj pue isni| diysiouped SHN sybnoiog g ay) ‘om
1By} UOISIA pauIquod ay} sjuasaid juswnoop siyjl "usaib
us9q SAEBY OM JEU} S0IN0SSI BY) YIM UBD OM By} SIDIAISS
yljeay |ejusw }saq ay) apinoid pue (1o} Aed) uoissiwiweos o)
Aem1saq sy} Ajuapl o} sanbes|jod (] Dd) Ishi) a1ed Alewid
Ino ypm Bupjiom ussq aney am sieak om) jsed syj Joo

"uebipn pue uojbulLBp ‘Sus|aH 1S ‘Asjsmouy] ‘uo)eH jo
ajdoad ay) jo spasu 3y} Jasw JaRRq 0} ‘opircid om seolAIas
8y} Bulnosdwi Aq sebusjjeyo ssayy yo pesye Aejs o} ueid
Isni] SHN diysisuped sybnoiog g ayj je spp ) pasu Asyy
alaym pue usym ‘) paau oym s|doad ay) o} ‘papaau si jeym
apiaoid 0} 9|ge aq o) sebueyd asayy ypm dn dssy o) spasu
‘s30(M18S || @Il ‘SHN 9y L 'pHom Buibueys-1ans ue uj anl app

UONONPOJIL]

L

4

GO



"Ainjus0 1512 3y} Jo spasu ayj Joy )i - seoIuas Ajjenb
panoidwi ybnoiy) pasesiou AjjealB ag jjim Jusuisanul jeyy
10 @njena sy} Se JJauaq |im ‘uollexe} eI Sn punj oym ‘oljgnd
{esouab ayy 10 51 Dd BuluolssILWOD INo ABy} q ‘S1spund e

"}l 9sE8108p J0U ‘siauped N0 yum op
am ylom ay) aseasaul Auo jim sjesodoid asay] *Buluugld
Jeloueuy pue sjiausq ‘uoneanps ‘Buisnoy ‘juawAojdwe
SpN[oul 0} 3ARY jlIM YoIym Sanl| sjoym s.ajdoad Buidueyus
pue Buyanodal Jnoge s 31 :uoipuod oyvads Aue Bunean
0} pajiwy) Jou St AI9ACDSI JOo M3IA INO "SAISS Osfe Aay}
YOIUM Ul S3IJED0] DY} Ul WSY} UM JSSO]D USAS HIOM 0}
SOIAIBS INO SND0J3L 0} Juem am se sjesodosd Ino woly
Wauaq m s18yjo pue sspuabe Alejunjoa ‘sjusiupedsp
Buisnoy ‘saoines |e190S ‘S| D d Se yons ‘sejauabe laulied e

‘ssasoid
uopsues} ayy Jnoybnoayy pssu Ay} poddns pue Bululely
3y} an@dal Jim Ay pue asodind 1o} j ale jey; sbuippng
up siom |im Asy L "yum yiom £syy ajdoad asoyy jo seniqe
jusund sy} Bujuejuew, Ajaiow Jo MaIA B UBY) JOYJE]
Janaq1eb, ajdoad jey) mala oy} ajowold jey) sjuswuoAUS
anlisod Ul JIOM 0} PIIGEUD oG [IM SISqUIBW YEelS e

'91q1ssod se ajeasawl) Japoys
e Ul auokians 10} K1an093) Jo |spow 3y} ejowold yoym
10 |Ile sjuawuoiiaus sjeudoidde pue 9)qisseade a10W Ul
papinoid aq jIim SE2IAISS "SBA)| JIBY) - JBAC S8Y B} UBY) Jayie)
- ojul s}y Jey) Aem e ul psjeas) pue pabeuew Joyoq aq 0}
SUONIPUOD 113y} 9|qBUS 0} Way)} yiim Bupjiom aie oym ye)s
Pa|Is woy} ‘sadIMSS PAsEq PasuSpIAd 'SAIjoSYS alow
an1a0al jiim A8y} Se Jyauaq (|Im S13JeD pue SI9SN 8IIAISS e

'3pNjoul yoiym paursouod Apoqhliane
o} sjyeuaq aney |im Bujiom Jo Aem mau oy} aAelaq opn

[2pow mau ay) jo sjyauag

"pajonysu0o sbuiping mau ‘palinbai yi pue 'ssiuadosd
Buysixa sy} 0} sjuSWYSIGINgaI [EUEISNS JO XIW B 9q [IM
alsy} Isni] a8y} ssoloy “£00g Jawwns Aq paja|dwod pue 9ooz
Jo uwnine ay} ul sabueys asay) ayew o} Says || 10} 8q pjnom
uopdo patigyaid ano sybnolog inoy Buuiewss sy 104 ‘Abajens
Buluoissiwwios meu e uo Buyiom aie jsni aren Aewnd
uebin pue ybla ‘uojysy asnesaq si syl "ybnolog ueBIAA
SU} 9pN|aUl JOU SBOP JUBWNJOP SIY} JOASMO “ISNI] SJOYM Su}
§so1oe pajuawsidwi aq |im oxew o} ueld am sabueys ayy

g}

g RER S

‘Kiano9a1 12y} Jo
sued [eloysuaq pue Juepodill JSOW By} JO BUO S| SIY} MOUY
BM 8SNEJa( SAA|| [BWIOU JIBY) 0} uInjal ued Aay) os a|qissod
se poys se Aejs Jiay) ayew o) A1} 0S|e [Im SAA ) pesu Aay)
se Buoj se Joj a1ed Ajjenb jo sjansy ybiy ABuisesioul spiaoid
0] BNUIIUOD [[IM 3M SPSaU 113y} }9aw 0} feydsoy 0} pajwpe
9 0] pasu op oym asoy) Jo4 ‘sBuipunonins swoy Jeyiwe; uj
Yiteay o} yoeq AI9A0931 Jj3y} SNURUOT 'pINoYs pue ‘pinos Asy)
pessed sey uoissiwpe oy} jo ped Buissansip jsow Apes
8y} Jsye uayQ -a1ay; sAejs Buoj Assspasu aney |epdsoy
0} pspiwpe aq o} psau op oym sjdoad Auew ‘Auejwisg

"Juswieal) siyl spiaoid Ja)aq piNo9 ‘sanusd Alsnodal
[EDO} Ul 1O ‘SSWOY UMO ,SI9SN SDIAISS By} Ul Jels paIg
“Juawijeal) juepodun pasu op Aay) Ing paq, B annbal Luop
lepdsoy o} papiwpe Apuanno ale oym s|doad Auepy ‘sanuas
92IN0S3J [EJ0] UIYNM JO BWI0Y Je Jayla pasu Aay} djsy ay;
BA1203) [|im 9jdoad 10w pue alow se [epdsoy 0} papiwpe
Buiag odoad Joms; aq jjim so1j0u [1m noA abueyd jsebbig oy |

99s JybBiw noA sabueys jeypy v

‘Slge|ieA. st )i 90u0 ABS)RIIS BUIUOISSILLILIOD MAU 3}
0} puodsas [im jsni] SHN diysiaupred sybrnosog g oy

"B812 1134} U papiaoid aq M A3y} moy pue
popaau a1 $a01MBSs Jeym Buipiefial SUDISSNOSIP Jayun;
0} Joslgns aq jjim Jeu ABajelis BUILIOISSILULIOD Mau &
Bunedssd Ajusino are 1 0d uebipy pue ybia ‘uoiysy

"JuIalIp 9 e sl ueBipn pue ybio ‘uojysy
ul-uonen)is syl ing 'uoibulliepy pue susjeH ig
‘Asjsmouny] ‘uojjeH Jo subnoloq au; uiym ApogAIsAsS
Wauaqg [k JUBWN30P SIL Uy sjesodosd ay) anAsiag s

ENVOIM 8 HOIT1 ‘NOLHSY S.3¥IHM

"S9OIAISS WEalsuIeLl
jo ped ujewss Asy} ainsua (1M am ‘uoipuod suebio Jeylo
SWOoSs Jo ejjuswsp se yons 'spasu jsiieoads Jayjo sey
|enpiAlpul ue sssjun "eo1M8s - suosiad Jap|o, - 1ayjoue o)
anow pinoys pue gidoad jualayip swosaq A3y} G9 10 Qg 248
pue Aepyuiq e aney sjdoad ssnessq isnf jey) aasyeq jou
op am ‘2104213Y] 'SPOSU pue Ajenpiaipu; Jiay) 1o joadsal
yum saoinies 1no Buissaase uosiad Aiane jealy o) ueld app

l

<



Page 26

£330 0

ugjsiuny suwiug Aindaqg ayj jo
Juswipeds(q ay) Aq paysyang
‘v00g auny "poday uoisnfouf
[BIO0S pue YjesH jejuspyy,

11

‘auoAue abejueapes|p Jo spnjoxa jou saop ey}
Jsuueuwl aAIsNjoul ue ul se01A9S apiaoid o) Ajigisuodsal
peppe ue aAey sa0IALSS ||B a10j218Y | sisoubelp yyesy
jejusw e o} psyoeye ewbils e sulewsas alay) ey
asjufiodal 0} s201AI8S Y)|EsY jBJudW PuoAaq SSOINSS {le
loj psau ay) s)ybyybiy osje podas siy| "uonejndod ay jo
lle Joj sadinlas sjendoldde Ajleinyno apiaoid 1snw ao1AIes
A1ane pue pajers|o} aq 196uo| ou ued siy} Jey} Jesp i
soyew podal , UOISN|OXT [BI00S pue YleaH [ejuspy, oyl
"SS0IAI9S Y)ESY |ejusw yim JoBjuod oju) Bujwiod usym
pefejueapesip usaq usyo aaey (gWg) sdnoig Juyg
Auouiy pue yoelg woly a)doad jey) mouy spp “sisoubelp
Jo uoifiifes ‘snyeys olwouods “spusb ‘abe svy) se yons
sanssi Jo ssajpiebal way) pasu oym sjdoad asoy) 4o |e
0} 9|gejleAB 3Q PINOYS SOOIAIBS ||y "UOISN[OXT [eI0S e

‘Remyied jusunean) J1ay) jo Juiod A1sA? Je $a91040 S9SN
30IAI9S 3SBaI0Ul 0} swie |apow pasodoid InQ ‘eoIMes
ay) Buneaiap uosiad sy} Jo Japush sy} pue papiaoid si
30JAI9S BY} SI8YM JUSWUGCIAUS 3y} ‘IOJ0 UO sjuswiess)
jo sadfy ay; ‘ejendoidde Ajesiud sseym ‘spnpoul o)
sauwi} Juswijutodde puokeq pepusixa Bulag si so10yd sIy)
S9OIISS UJBSY |BjuSW U] ‘WaY} JO} JUSIUDAUOD S| Jey)
soe|d e pue awy e Je sjeuoissajosd yum sjuswiulodde
‘aguenpe Ul '}400q 0} S19sn 8oIA19S Joy Ajunuoddo ey
sopiroad ABojouyos) SHN mau ay) yim pajdnos saleul
2oog pue 8sooy), ayl ‘I Ang am a1aym pue }i Ang am
usym ‘Ang 0} Jeym J0 SSVI0YD PSJWIUN JSOWE SABY SM
aI1aym plIoMm B Ul SA| ||B SAA "SSOIAISS [[B 10} ansst Biq e
awo2aq sey a%1oy) ‘H)Oog pue asooyn, pue ‘adoyd e

‘Pasn a4 0} s| SHN 3y} Jo Buipuny uj asealsu| Juedmubis
Sy} moy sjiejep ‘souepinb pue sjuswnoop Buluoddns
Auew sy pue ‘Juawinoop sIYL 000Z ‘Ueld SHN SYl e

. "S80IAISS Ujjeay [ejusw jje Aq paAljyoe
3q Isnw Jey) spiepuels Apenb Bulysijgeise ‘wiojal 1oy
swweiboid 1eah ua) e paysiigelss 4SN aYl 6661 (4SN)
YljeaH |eJUSI 104 MIOMawield a8D]AI9S |BUOljEN 3yl e

:yBnosyy usaq saey sjuswanoidw asay} jo siejd uiew ay;
saAfeniul Auew sy} jsBuowy ‘saa1nss y)jeay [ejuaw aaoidwi
0}jybnos aney sjuswuIaA0S) snojaald ay} pue Juaino sy yjog

M3IA SJUBWILIBAOS) By

UOIBNLS jRUONIEU BU |

»

'€

£

oL REL Y]

E

!
3
PETVETSS

o} ueld am jeym Buipuny 1o} sjqisuodsal a1e oym ojdoad ay;
‘s18U0ISSILILIOD {e20] Ino Jo Buiyoeq |n} ay} aaey suejd Jng

'sue|d Jno Uo SMaIA IN0A
Jeay o1 ) [l pinom am sabueys asay) aousliadxa o} seale
1Sl Y} JO BUO Ul ‘SIDIAIBS BA]SD 10 'SAl| JoU Op NOA JI uang

‘uodn paaoidul 8q ues Aay} moy mouy| 0} 8| pjnom
am 9sED 3y} Jou SI Siy} 4] “wiay) Joj Aed Jeyy spuny olgnd sy
10} Aauouwl Joy anjen Buipirold JS|Iym SBOIAISS N0 SSII0E oYM
sjdoad auj jo spasu ay) joaw 0} pleamioy Aem jsaq sy} ale
Aauy anslaq ap “sue|d Ino JO YUy} NOA JeyM MOUY Q) JUBM BN

‘sebueys pasodoid ay) Buipiebas smain snok
Jo} yse pue seolAIes jnpe Buisiuebioal Joj sueld no suino
uay} M ¥ sy} Buimojjod seoinlas yyeay [ejusw souanjul
Ajuaiung Jey) senssi [200] PUE JEUONEU BY} BUIINO OS|E [IM }|

‘oW spasu asoy)
SABY {IM SPasu yjlesy [ejuaw yjim sjnpe moy o} sabueyo
Buipiebas op o} Buiuue|d ale am jeym Jno puy o} Aunuoddo
8y} um ‘alignd [esauab ay) ‘nok sapiroid Juswnaop siyj

JUBWIND0PD 8U} JO asodind 7




¢l

SUI0S Ul palayo s8dInes ouelyoAsd sinoe jo Aoua)sisuod
pue Ajjenb ay} JNOGE SUIIUOD PBYHUSPI SABRY SSJEIOAPE
J18y) pue s1asn 80lAI9S AQ USNBUSPUN SMBIASI JUSIY

'S1areo pue s1asn ypm Bulobuo
S1 UOIJB)NSUOD Sy} INSU3 OSje Jey} SWnioj jsnij Jo Jaquinu
B 9g 0} Sanuljuod alayl "SIDIAISS INO SN OYM SOy} Jo
SM3IA aY) 0} Buiua)si| pastiiold am uopeals s isnit INo wol

SM3IA 19S(] 9D1A18Q

SPaq S[BWS} 1Z YliM UepLIBYS
Speq sjew gz yum usisny

'SMOJ|0) SE spiem oM} usamiaq Jiids spsq
9F sey (uojbuiiepp Buinies) uojbuniepp Sred SuljoH e

spaq 0z Yum abpug
spag 0Z Yim Janespn

:SMOJ|0}
Se spiem Om} J9A0 Jjjds spaq gy sey (uojeHq Buiues)
lendsoH |ejouasy uojleH je paseq ‘Jun 19)00.g dYL e

(susieH 1S) sPaq sjew gL ym G1
(sus|eH 1S) Spaq a[eway) 91 YIm 41
(Rasmouy)) spaq sjewsy 9| YIm Z1

(Asismousy) spaq sjew 2| ypm | |

:SMOJ|0}
SE SPJem Inoj pue spaq /9 sey (susjaH 1S pue As|smouyy
Buinias) [eydsoH uo)siypA Je paseq '‘Nun Asjplays syl e

‘Je pajenjis a.e s)npe o} saoey juanedul Jusuno g

apiaoad Apualina am ey

‘Ajunwiwos ajoym ay} 1o}
yyeay |ejusw ay) Buiaosdwi up swie s,yjesy jo juswpedsqg
8y} yum sull ul Ay si a1ed Jo jepows mau pasodolid o

I Op am
MOy 0s|e jng op oM jeym yjoq anoidwi 0} pajeald aq 0} pasuy
S3II0.) MU pue peapsau aie Bupliom JO S[Spow mau jey)
MBIA S JUSWUIBACY) ay} ypm salbe sjesodosd InQ “(As|smouy
u ‘Jun Aslpiays ayj jo anyy Ajjeroadsa si siy)) pasiusepow
9q 0} Pas3u pue uoHIPuod S|gens ul Jabuo} ou ale saly|Ioe)
jusijedul jusuno Ino jo awos Jey} jdaooe am ‘Ajgenaiboy

(43

yyesaH jo Juswuedaqg

V00T MO SIBBA 9N ~
%o\wwumﬂﬂmoﬁq@ﬁawsﬂu . '81doad passausip jo aies sy 0] pajIns
Jou aile ey} asn u) spiem Jusped-ul aie 9isy) ‘SSaoULBSASN
"anjejussa.dalun pue pajepino St Spiem yjjeay [eyustu plenbs
40 abeun seindod ay) pue ‘paysiqinjal SaUo Japjo pue NG
ueaq sAeY SHUN uaned-ul MaU ‘SISnJ yiresy jejusi Auew uj,

:pres Jaded uQ siea anld, 9y} ‘spiem Jualjed-u jo Joadsal u)

"(HNOS) yireaH [ejusyy Joy
anuay Ainqsuies sy woy
sunwesbold aie) juspeduy
8jnoy 8y} pue (IHWIN)
puebuz ul yiyeaH [ejuey 104
aymysuj jeuonen , pueibug
uj spaem ouzenjofsd

unpe jo Aanuns feuoneu

v -#002 a/eg ajndy,,

"HE)S JO 9jRIOW pUB UoIIUS)R) ‘JuswynIdal paroidull
pue ‘yejs Buowe sjjiys synadelay) psroidwi e
siayjo pue gejs ‘sjuaned jo Ajsjes paaoidw e

SAOIAISS B1BD |BID0S
pue yjesy jejusw Ajunwiwod ypm uoneiBajul parosdw e

) juswieay
1sijeloads pue uoISSIWPE SISLD ‘uoneyjqeyal ‘e1ed anoe
10} swie)sAs Ja}laq apn[oul pINOYS S[SpPoWw Mau asay]|
"$80IAIBS 9S0L) 9SN OYM 9SOY} JO SPUBLLBP BY) }oaLl Jajaq
0} ‘seoues Juaned-ul Buipnioul 's99IAISS JO S|OPOW MU e

:Jo} pasu e s| a1ay) paje)s Jodal ay) sjdwexa o4
"PalNbal SEM Y10M SI0W SI8YM SEIIE S1aM 819y} Jey) paje)s
osje )l ssssyuanaN “uoisiacid yjeay jejusiu Jo sease Auew
u epeuwl ssasboid sy buiprebar Aes o) sBulyy aasod Jo 10)
B pey uonenjeas sjy| ‘ SS0IAISS yjleay |eusiu Buiacidw
Ul ssauanoals ,sieak aay Is1y S, 4SN Syl J0 uoienjeas
ue paysjignd ujesH jo juswpedad ayl yOOZ Ul ‘osly

"Ajradoad Bupjiom Just walsAs Juaind ay} Jey) sajelisuowap
Aues|o ‘yejs peseq AJUNWWOD pue pIEM UIIM]Iq
uoljeoluNWWOoD J00d Sem SI3Y) pue piem ay} uo 3|qejieAe
sjuswiesy) ounadelay) psjiuwi| s1em a1ay) jey) sbuipuy ay)
ynm pajdnoo siy) ‘piem 1ad yaom 1ad yels awi-|iny y uey)
aiow 0} psjunowe sty] ‘spiem jusiedul uo yeys Aouabe 1o
JUeq JO asn pue SaIDUBIEA JE)S JO S|aA3| UBiy a1am alay) jey}
punoj aied oujelyafsd sjnoe Jo ajels syj uo ZHodau e $0oz u|

sBuipuy yoiessay

‘Japow pasodold ino papnjoul Bupiom Jo shem
M3U YIim Ul i) 0} pue 8010y ajowoid oy sjybly uewny ey}
yim Adwiod 1oy €861 8yl uiyim sanbiquie ayy Buionpal Aq
S3IAISS U)|EsY [BJUSW SSIUISPOLL 0} Y235 |IM SjUBLLPUSLUIE
953y} jey) pajediolue st} ‘papuswe aq ||im 19y £86 1 Bunsixa
SY} I9ABMOH "alniny Iesu 8y} Ui Joy YJlesH [ejusiy mau e
3G JOU [IIM BJ3Y) JBY) MOUY MOU BM ‘MET UYjeaH [RIUDH e




‘iom Buisiom pue
aoe|d Ul mou 1 yolym ‘ainjonys Juswabeuew Jno psuyduis
M M3IABI S,UOISSHUWOD 8. yljesH 9y} o) asuodsal u)
"M3IASI (DDH) uoissiwwo) a1e) YjeaH aalisod e paniaoal
oM $00Z J2quianoN u| »oog pue asooy) pue sbueys 1o}
epuaby ‘sawn) Buniem o} Buljeal sjabie} sjuswulanos) ay)
10 [je Jow aAey e\ 'siayjo Bujubisapal pue sagialas ojul
Asuow mau Bupsaaul Aq sybBnoloq ino jo jsow u sjabie)
(dan) ueld Aisnisq |edo] Aoy ay) Jow osje aaey app

‘uoiesuoyine sjeldoidde ay) o} josfgns gooz Ul
ISni) uoyepunod SHN Ue 3wo23aq ||IM am Jey} os aaoidwll 0}
3NUIIUOD 0} JUEM AN 'JSNIL IB]S-Z B JO SNJelS ay) sh papieme
aney YyesH jo Juswpedag ay) jey) jujod sy} 0} Sa0JA19S INO
panosdun Ajjusisisuo saey am ‘sisuped 1no yum Buppom Ag

souewopad ysnuf  g¢

vl ASRO -

'sanss ay) Buissaippe uj djay Apueaubis m
aleo Jo |spow pasodoid Jno Jey) pue Aisnouss AIsA suIsouod
9S9Y} 9%} aM Jey)) SSJBIISUOWAP JUSWINJOP SIY} 9ABISq SR

“yomiaded isypually pue sojdwis o

pue ‘sisied jo} Joddns Buiaocidul e

saunyoddo

uoneonps pue juswAhojdwe o} ssadoe  Buinocidw
sBuip|ing Buinosdu

$301M3S Y)jesy |ejuau 0} ssadoe Bujroidwi

SBIIAISS Y)[esy [ejuswl JNoge uolewloul Jajag

Inoge pue jno Buipeb

Anuapuadapul any| 0} djay

ssauy [ejusw jo ewdis sy} yym Buiesp ur poddns

1SMOj|o} Se Juawanoidwil Joj suoljsabbns
pa)30 29sI0IaXe  UONBYNSUOD |BJ0| SOeIooSSy  8y)

‘papinoid aied
8y} Jo abpa sy} Jo pes)jsul ‘Heay sy} JB S82IN0SaI ANUNWWOD
saoeld jey} jopow Aianodal e 0} [opow [ESID By} WOl
Aeme anowl 0} pssu [Bal B passaldxe Asy) JaAomoH "siseq
wial-Buol e uo way) o) papinoid Buidq saoIAIes AJUNWWGD
3y} peojewasdde Ajersusb si1sied pue siasn  a9MeS

$92IA9S AIUNWWIOD ypm syul| jood yum
sjuswabuene ofieydsip pue uoissiwpe a|qeyns Jo yoe| e

S0US|OIA JO S}EaIY} JO |BNjO. JO S|and] ybiy e

JJelS wnoo| pue
foushe j0 9sn anissaoxa 0} Buipes] yeys jo Aouaisisuosul
lo abeuoys o} anp suonuaaaul onnadelsy} ou 10 A e

sBuipying pue Juawuonaue J10od e

‘saway) Buimoy|o} ay} Auspl SJUSPIoUl PIEMOJUN SNOLIS
ojul suodal 20UBUISAOD [EDIUID WIOJ SUOIBPUSWIWODS]
pue suejdwod lesn 20IA8S Jo sisAleue UB  ‘OS|y

‘asodind
Jo} ssauyy s,Buip|ing ay) pauoiysanb pue jiun Asjpiays ay)
Ulyyim patanilap a1em sao1nas Aem ayy Buipiebal suleouos
JuasIsuU0d punoy - 00z Aely (susjsy 1S) uonejnsuosn
Jate) pue s9sn jo sbBuipuld, - seje00SSY 8y Aq 9si01axd
uolje)nsu02 Juspuadapul ue gjdwexs 104 Jsniy ay} jo sped

o2



Page 29

S TETS

Ll

lanamon swifep ay) Bulnp aq jIm siy) Ajjensn "SaWOY UMO
JIBY} UIYNM 10 91JUBD BY} je JBYJS JawW 8] [ Spasu JIay)
ajdoad jsow Jo4 "spasu IN0A Jo }SOW }38W M pUB 3JIAPE
noA aalb |im Jey) senuad a01MI9S [B90], BY) S SaNuRD
20inosay pue AlaA0day ‘AisA0dal J1dY) SPIE SIyl SB SaA)|
J1ay} ypm uo 16 o} wey) s|qeua o) aqissod se awi) e poys
Se 1o} ,peot ay} 4o, 8q 0} Juem Anjybu s|doad “iepwis ale
S3OIISS Y}|eay |ejusl JO Spasu pue suonejoadxa s,ajdoad

"MOU 871 - SN S)INS ey}
Swi} e Je )i X1} 0} UOIIBIS 9DIAISS [ED0] B JUBM SM ‘PaXy 8] O}
Ki0108} 8y} 0) 06 6] 3ARY 0} JED BY) JUBM JOU O SAA "O|qIssod
Se JoYs se g 0} awl} siy} Juem aloja1ay) spA Buijenysnyy Asa
9 UED Siy} ‘SwWi} HOYS B 10} PO’ 3U} JO 8 0} SABY SJED N0
sawjeWog apispeos ay} je Aigessyaid — aqissod se uoos
Se paxy way} juem sm op Asy} Ji umop Xealq 0} sied Ino
JUEM JOU Op 9M SISAIIP JED ale am ji ‘s|dwexs 104 ‘Isjse) pue
Jajaq ‘alow j0adxa app ‘Ajjeotjeweip pabueys aAey SaoIAI8S
40 suoljejoadxa Jno sopesap Jusdal 1aA0 ‘Ajessush ayy uj

£S3J1UdD 92IN0S3Y pue AISA0ITY e 1By

‘mojaq sabejs ay) a1l Buiylawos apnjoul Aeus
Kouinof |eaidA) e ‘Aem awes ay} u| "swi) Jeu} je uosiad ey} Jo
spaau ay} uodn juspuadap s| §5399E Asy} SaIAIBS JUI0ads
yoym pue Asuinol auy jo abeys yoea o awy jo ybus| oy

jusuzessy ubnouys Asuanof sy

Ajunwiwog sy} uggm
Buiny Aes

Aoy

9l

“a01n1as Buniiom Juof sssjweas e moys 03 palnjq
Kejesaqiiep a1k sjulod 19A0SS019 8y} suifaq Jayjoue pue spus
301/u8S 8u0 a1ayMm sjulod ale s1ey) YyBnoyje Jey) sjou jiim nop

‘voddns s1e0 paleys s1eo Aewud pue
isieloads juiol ein A1aao2al (|ny o} Buluinlas a10)9q sa0IMSS
yjeay|ejuaw jsijeroads pasnbal ji pue a1eo Arewlid sassaooe
uay uosiad siy| ‘mopleA Aq psjuasaidal sp Ajunwiwos sy)
uiym Buial yilesy {ing up lenpiapul uy ‘mojeg sweibelp
ay} ul psjuasaidal si Aswinof sjyl -Aisnooal jiny pue
Hoddns aieo Mtewnd o) Bujuinjas slogeq aled jsienads
alow painnbas y pue aied Atewnd ybnoiyy ‘yyeay woy
Buinow oxe) sjenpialpu; jeyy Asuinof e se Juswjeal) 2as app

"M3lA S1Y) sjowoud 0] Jels pue saolnas
INo [|e jJuem am pue jopow A19A0281 8y S| SIYL “SSA|| 118y}
yim uo Job pue ssoul) sisy) sbeuews Jayaq o) way} sjgeus
UEeD ey} a1ed 19}jaq Spiacld ued )nsal B SB pue SuoIIpuod
s,2/doad Jnoqe 210w J0] B MOUY MOU SAA “SaAl| [niBulueaw pue
Pa|jny 8ABY 0} UO SNUNUOI U SSaU||! [EJUaW BuLinpus pue
snouas e pajjes si jeym aaey Aew oym ajdoad asoy) usag

‘9SBd ay} a4 siyj pinoys
1abBuo) ou p|noys siy} Jey) aAal|aq AN .jPIOM B JOU - 9oUdUSS
e si sisoubelp yyeay jeyusui e, Builas) sienpiapul swos ylim
$s900.d sy} Ul padjay jou aAey SaJAIAS Swos jsed ay ul
laAamoH "e)ep JaJE| B Je SaA] [BWIOU 113y} 0] Ui}l UMOopPXeaIq
yjlesy [ejuaw jo puny swos souanadxs oym ajdoad jsopy

fualaip Aue yjeay jejusiwu 1Spisuod am pjnoys
AYpn “AIsnoinaid se sanl| [BWIOU JIBY) YJIM SNnuijuod ued Asy)
uonipuod Jiay} Jo wawebeuew Jadosd pue suoinesaid may
e Yyum Jng ‘sejeqelp se yons 'Buoj 3y oq Aew suonipuod
yllesy [eaisAyd siay) sjdoad Jayjo 104 "swajqoid Jayuny ou
o apy yum oy snoiaaad 118y 0} uinjal pue 1aA008l, ‘Bull}
ay) jo jsow ‘s|doad jsow Jng juswiesal} jo Jo| e paau Aew
Asy) pue awi axe) Aew )| 1aA0281 O} I8y 10 Wiy Padxs
am Ajjensn Ssaujjl Ue JO JUSPIOOE UE SBY DUOSWOS USUAA

&Jopoly A1aa0day, ay) st leym

'y

jepowl msu syl ¥




6l

ECRIVES
Japiosip Bujjea se yons ‘sao1AI9s asay) apiaoid 0} ajqe Japeq
Asy) sjensuowisp ues Asy) i S8|01 8SBY) JO BWOS UO SKE) O}
s1apiaoid Jayjo BuiBeinooua ale s1auolssiwwod ABuisesiou
‘Isni|. SHN diysisuped s,ybnolog g sy Aq pspinoid ag jim
Ino4 pue aaJy| Ja1] Je S3JIAISS e jou Jey} psjou aq osje
pInoys } 821y} Jai| e (sbuijes |eydsoy upyum ueyy sayiel)
S90IAI9S paseq A||eoo| aiow jo uoisirold pasealoul sy pue
oM} 131} Je a1ed Alepuodas pue Alewilid Usamlag soepa)ul Bu)
2| ‘anolduwl 0} Juem am jey) Juawaaoidull Jop Sesle ulew
OM] 9y} SMOUS Osje }) "sad1AIas Bullsixa pue japoul mau auy)
OJul Jij s131} 9S8yl moy smoys abed Jxau ay) uo weibeip sy

"S9OIAIAS BlJUSWAP )sijeloads pue
S9OIBS J9plosip Buiies a1anas ‘s80IAI9S UOIIBDIXOIOP
'sa01A19s o1susioy Buipnjoul ‘saiioe; jusnedul jsieoads
alow palinbas A2y} 184} Yans ale spasu aSOYM §,JeNpIAIpUl
950U} 10} 1B SIVIAISS 959 | "aieD 1S||e19adg ~ INo4 121} o

"uojssaidap oluew pue ejualydoziyos
23l sassau||i [ejuaw pue siapiosip Ayjeuosiad ‘siapiosip
Bunes ‘fjaixue ‘uojssaidop se yons suopuod yum ajdoad
1o} aq pnom saolAIas asay) AjjealdA} ‘saoinas oo
WEeajSUIB UIYIM WIOL) WSU) Jeal) 0} S|qe a4 0} Wiay) Inoge
ybnous mouy am Jng snoues ale spasu asoym djdoad
950y} 10} ale $30IA19S 959U | “Juatjedul ue se Jjos) Jjusd
ayj ulym Jaquinu iajjews e 1o} 10 ‘sbuiges Ajunwiiod u|
‘sawoy Ji1ay; ul sjdoad poddns [Im Jey) saiua) 821n0say
pue A1anooay paseq Ajeoo] woly papinoid aq |im oJed
Aiepuooss sjapow mau 8y} U| "SIUBJNSUCD |BIIpSW
paseq |endsoy Aq psj saoinues paseg-lepdsoy usaq sey
18 siyy Ajeuonipes) “asen Aiepuodag — aaly) 191] e

‘spaau
INoA Jaau 0} 991AI8S }S8q Y} SI YOIYM pusuILosal pue
SP29U INOA ssesse [im BOIASS SIY| ‘2180 Aiepuodas
isileads pue aieo Alewud ussmjeq aoepsul By} S|
SIY] 99IAlaS JusBWSSassy pue Bujusaiog — om] 131l e

olul2 Aunwwos Jo Aisbins
S,d9 InoA ul uayo '}aw ale spasu s1ed |eins pue yjesy
InoA Jo jsow areym si syl ‘asen Alewid - ouQ 191) e

81 SBPIOE ¢

*SMO||0) SB WalsAs alesy)eay [e00] 8y} ojul
sy pue yoeoidde paiai) sy} uo spjing asnpodjul 03 buisodoad
SJe 9M Jey) |Spow mau ay | "spinoad isnij e se am jeym isni
jou — 21e2 Jo ,wajshs ajoym, ay} o} 19ja1 asay) "poddns jo
sial} Jnoge e} ejdoad piesy aney Aew noA AjBuiseasouy

poddns jo sialy

‘palinbai se spasu 1ok o) puodsas
0} 9|qe|ieAe aq ||Im SWES) JUSWIES)] SWOH PUB UOHNjOSaYy
SISUD §,8J)U8D 92IN0Say pue AIaA0dy By} uonusje
ajelpawwl alow ainbai pue sisud e Bupusuadxe sie noA )

‘1seq
S30URJSWNDIID INOA pUE NOA SHNS JEY} SUOSWIOS 935 0} SINOY
2109 8y} uIyIm swi} pue Aep e ¥00q 0} Sige |(1M NOA ‘uoiusye
Sjelpaluwl pesy pue SISO B JO JSPIW 8y} ul a1 noA ssajun

*(se01n9s 1no Joj Aed oym ajdoad ayy) s12u0ISSILLLIOD
INO ypm suoissnosip Jayuny ainnbal |Im om siy} op ueos am
a10}eq Inq spusyaam pue sBuluans apn|oul o} papuajxs ag 0}
sInoy 8109 a53Y) 9yl pInoMm SpA “Aepl4 0} ABPUO WdG -Wweg
10 sinoy 2109 sy} Buunp poddns aal80a) [Im spdoad jsow
‘1ansmo “1eak sy Jo Aep A1ana Aep e sinoy Inoj-Ajusm)
poddns apinoid Jim sanquan ayy 3 annbas oym asoy) Jo

"Wy} gess ‘sjeuoissajoud pajejal Jayjo snoliea pue sjsidelay)
leuojednooo ‘siaxiom jeloos ‘sisibojoyoAsd ‘sasinu ‘siojoop
Bupnjour ‘pejs jeuotssajord Jeyio pue SHN INg ‘sjepdsoy
Jou are Aay] "S9AMISS 1By} aA1903) m Sjdoad Jsow Siaym
WIoJ} S3SEQ 8y} 98 SBHUSYD 99IN0SSY pue AIan02ay 'HoYs y|

‘Hoddns jsiferoads asow a1nbas oym s|enpiaipu) 8soy) Jo
SPasu 8y} j9sw 0} s|qe J3)}9q SJE JBY) SUS Sy} Wolj Aeme Jels
1sl|e10ads alow Jo abuel ajoym e Aq dn paxoeq ale ‘sjdwexs
abeseb sy oy 'sanusy s0un0say pue AsAcoey oYy

*S8IINP Mau N1y} [Ny 0) Way} ojqeus o} Buluiel) jeuonippe
usnlb aq osje jIm yejs ‘I annbal oym asoy} 104 “Hiom Asy)
MOy pue yiom Asy) a19ym aq {[1Im saoualagip Aluo sy} ‘yejs
awes ay) Ajoexa aq [Im A3y} SSOUBJSU] JSOW U} "MOU Sh 10}
om Ajuslind oym ssoy) Se sUsHEDII|END PUE SjiIS JO S|oAY
swes 8y} ises| Je ypm sosholdws SHN =29 [Im Hels oy

‘way) a1inbal oym asoy} 1o} spaq Jo 1aquinu
llews e g Jlim 19y} a19ym a1jusD 32IN0SAY PUB AI9ACISY
8UJ UIYIIM 10 SSWOY UMO N3y} Ul Joy}Id papiaoid 8q pInoo siy)
uiebe ‘poddns o010 ay} punole annbai Aew gjdoad swos

€

4




Page 31

aq ‘ssnsipy
souesqnsg
aindag
s1aplosip
bugeq
JISUB104
S9OIABS
jusned-ul
Isijeadg

s

14

lapiosip aAlssaldap-oluew
pue ‘uoissaidap onoyoAsd
‘eluaiydoziyos ‘sisoyohsd
‘6o ssauj|i |ejuaw
919A9S IO} SNBSS Lf)|eaH

slopiosip Ajljeuosiad

pue buies ‘Aloixue
uoissaidap *6's swajqoud
HIN UOWIWOD SNOLIAS

o} s8oI1AI9S YijesH

Juawabeuew ss900y .

o0y »

Bunsodubig .«
Juswssasse

pasipiepue)s yadxg «
ssadoe

jojuiod 9jbulg .

Z 4911 10} Bulusalog «
ssaujj|
JelU3]\l snolieg

10} sjooojoid paalby .
Japiosip Ayjeuosiad
‘Alaixue ‘uoissaidop
‘62 swa|qoid HIN
UOWIWOD 10} SADINIBS

8le9 [e10s B YjjesH -

sAemyjed aoja48s MaU Ing

0z

Alunwwo)n
|eoo]

Aunwiwod sy uypm
Buin Auyeap

Aoy

LD
[N

~e



€T

"SJUSWILICIIAUS PASE] AJUNWIWIOD JO SWOY Ul 34 [|IM YoM 113y}
40 Aiofew jsen sy} Jng saseq Jlauy Se SaNua) 90IN0SIY pue
Aionoaay om) asn ||im Jels sjqissod se yonw se Ajunwiwiod
8y} u1 aq pjnoys ,uoneoo), sl aAslaq Ajbuol)s am sjeuoissajold
ared Aiepuodss isijenads Aq paye)s ao1aI9s e si sy} ybnoy)y

"18U00S SPISU 118y} Jeal) 0} ssauj|l
10 ;sposide jsiy, e Bupusiiadxa aq o) Jeadde oym ajdoad pue
ajdoad 1abunoA jobie; ABuiseaioul Im a1/8S UOHUBAISIU|
Aire3 ano aso)assy | “ssauj|l [ejuSW B yim Buiyels ag Aew
oym sjdoad o} uonejal ul an1y Ajjerdadsa s| siyl Alenooal
linj & Jo s8OUBYD sy J3)iaq ay) ‘uoddns an@oas ssalsIp
jejusw aouapadxa oym sjdoad 19u00S Ay} Jey) mouy 9AA

ao1A13§ uojuUaAIS| Ajies

"wes} ay) ulyim Burjiom
Jouonoeld uosie|] 2SN [BUIWLD B BARY [IM 811Us9)
90IAPY PUB SS90V YoEa jey) pasodoid si Il pue sjuswissssse
Jonpuoo M  sjeuoissajoud ased yyeay jo ebues vy

"BAlBINUI )00 PUB 9S00YD), BU) Ul paquosap se
(D0IAIDG JUBWISSISSY |EDIUID, B JO SPIEPUE]S §,JUSWUIBA0L)
8yl UYlm aul| Ul 8q pinom ]I usyBHApUN S| JUSWSSSSSE ue
IaA3UBYAA "SBNue) 20in0sSOy pue AISA0D9Y By} UIyIMm
pajedn| aq Im swes| 99IApY pue $S300y 9y ‘sdnolib pue
sajouabe ajendoidde Jayjo 0} Buiisodubys 1o s1es |eoos ‘aieo
Isienads ‘sanued 90inosay pue M1aA093Y 8y} 0} Isyle
eyl agq ~ ss9o0id |elisjer ay) sbeuew |m pue sasqnbus
pue sjeusjal || aye)} ||im SWwes) 3say) ‘SWea] S0IApY pue
$S300Y 8U} BIA 8Q |[IM S30IAISS 1IN0 JO e 10} Aemajeb, oy

SWES| 3DAPY pue SS9y

"24jua9 ay} ulym woyy papiaoid mm os|e [im poddns sy}
se ‘sjuswjuiodde jusiedino paseq |endsoy (e 10} pasu sy}
SJBUILLI[SIMSIY | "$9.JUSD 82IN0SIY PUE AJISA0IDY UY)IM WO}
10 SOWOY UMO JIDY) UIY)IM Jay}8 Jou SPasu aleo Y)eay [ejusw
Isieoads s1ay) aneoal |pm ajdoad Jsow ajqissod Jansisypp

*(uo 0s pue ‘sdnoib uolessad Buows 'ssoj
wBiem ‘sejaqelp o1} sdnoib ysu taybly Joj syoeyd yjeay
|eaisAyd pojobie) se |[om se ssiouabe syybu aseyem pue
Buiured; yuswhojdws ‘Buisnoy spnjaul sapuabe 1ayjo ssay)
40 s3|dwex3 "s19sN S} 10} 1)U UOIJBWIOLUI PUE SJIAPE Ue 8Q
lIm saued 80Inosay pue AI3A0D3Y 3y) Jey) puajuj os|e spn

€y

2z ey -

"S18JED 118U} pUB SISSN A2IAISS BU} JO S} JUSIUSALOD
}sow 8y} Jins jsaq o} sawl) je }os sjuawjulodde pajnpayos
-91d BIA 9 ||Im 921A3S SIY) 0} SS800Y “Adesay) jeuonednaso
pue yejs {esipaw ‘saoines AbojoysAsd * saidelayy Bupyey,
Butpnpour syusuneas} jo osbuer e apiaoid M swes)
9s9y} ‘swes] JusWIeal]JUdWISSAISSY padsueyurm (g

“JUN 8y} 0} UDISSILIPE NBY] JSYE PUE 310}3q SIISN B0IAIDS
Yiim xiom o} pabeinodsua aq |im Yels pue Jsjjews yonw
aq [Iim Jun 8y} Ing spaq asay) Yoddns |m yels Buisinu
‘MOU s8I )i se isnr ‘spag A1aaoday pue poddng oy (g

*sBuilias AUnwwo9 Jaylo ulylm pue
SSWOY UMO 113y} U} S191eD pue siasn 99)A19s o) poddns
apiAcud |lIm pue S.jusd 3y} UIYIM paseq aq M Swes)
9Say| ‘swea| juawieall JWOHMORN|OSSY SIS (|

:suonouny [eauo
8100 991} J9AIBP PINOM B1JUSD 80iN0SAY pue A15A099Y 3y |

suooung ay |
‘2Nud2

oy} Jo suonouny uswabeuew ay} Janep sjo1 siyL
UOUJEY\ UISPON ®

"99I/USS JUSWSSASSY / Juswijeal]
pasueyuz sy} Aq paisnap S| JUSWIBRl} PUB JUSWISSasse
3MoBYs alnsua 0] diysispes| Jayo M 3ol syl

}siBojoyohsd jueynsuo) e

‘Buiuueld aied pue juawieal o} diysispes] [eaipaw
Jayo jm sjou siy) ‘Jsujelyshsd apelb yejs e yim Jayjebol
ISHIBIYOASd JUBYNSUCT »

‘abieyosip pue suojssjupe sjendoidde
aihsua 0} Je)s |eaipaw yum A[asojo Bupom ‘eoies oy
ybnoy} smoyy Jusijed sjeudoidde ay) ainsua |pm 3j0. SIy |

lobeuey wea| uonn|osay SISUD e

:JO 1s1SU02

lIim wes) ay| "$S800Ns S,20ua2 ay} ainsua o} asodind 104 Jy
wes} diysispes| e ysijqejss o} pasodoid s| i pue ssaoons
sjapow 3y} o) Asy ay} si diysiapes| amoays Bulnsug

diysiapeay

8INJNILS a1JuUa) 92IN0SAY pue Asroady

4

¥

14

4

>

¥



Page 33

sz

'siseq juawjuiodde ue uo a1uBD BY} LIYIM O
awoy umo Jisy) Ul sayys sidosd Bugoddns uodn psoeld aq
IM B1JUSD) 90IN0SSY PUB AI9A0D9Y MAU JNO JO siseydwa ay)
JanamoH ‘Hoddns juanedur wial-poys ainbal oym sjenpiaipul
10} spaq £z SAeY ||IM )| "a1jus) Jeyoolg paysiginial ay) uy
paseq oq [IM 3Jjus) 801n0say pue AIBA0J9Y Suo)eH

uojeH gy

©9.4% [e30] INOA Ul YOO] [[IM S80IAIDS MO

Aay

e

'sao1u9s Ajjenb Ajisw
— uoniped Aue oes jouued way) asn oym sidoad Jey; juiod
AU} 0} ',SSJWEDS, 9q 0} SIIIADS INO JUBM M SE ‘paunjq
Alsjesaqyap st Buipeys siu} 18y} S)0U |IM NOA "SSOIAISS SieD
Aepuosas ‘aniq ay) ‘yim aoepsjui sy pue aued Arewnd
sjuasaidal apeys usaib sy apis puey }a| 8y} uo uieby ‘esie
1noA u op 0} ueid am Jeym JNOGe UCHEBWLIOI BI0W NOA SanIB
pue ¢ UO[Joas Ul P3|IE}SP [SPOW Y} UO SPIING MOjaq Weys ay |

eate Jnok up op o) uejd am Jeyp

"901AI9S 8y} BAIS0J OYM SSOLJ} JO SSI0YD PUB SPAU 8y}
S}oaW Jsaq jey; uoisiaoid paseg-Aunwwod uo s| siseydwa
3y} a1aym 3Uo S| 821AI9S S|} JO alnjeu A1aA ay) ureby ‘spasu
Ylleay [ejuaw aaey AIBSIO JNq SSDIAISS UIM Y10M O} Juejon|al
9Je uoseal 1anajeym 1o) oym ajdoad Jo Jaquinu jjews ay)
ynm spiom [m Aoy -sBuiles Ajunwiwod ulypm paseq aq
I Aay) pue swes] poddng pue AsA0o9y Apunwiwod
3y} yum A[SSOP oM [Im SWES| YOBINNQ SAIMSSSY Byl

(LOV) sweaj _._umo._uz.o SAIMasSY

"aouapuadapu) 1ojealb pue uoisnjou] [B100s ‘A19A009)
10y Ayunuoddo ay; Bulgeus ‘passalppe sie spasu pue ay|
$.J85N 20IAIBS BY} JO Sjoadse |je Sainsua jey} yomaulely
juswabeuew ssea jsnqos B ybnoly) spinord Ay} ases ayy
3]eUIpI0-02 |IM JETS | HIND "slqe a1k Aay) se uoos se Aja1nos
pue sadlAJ8S WESJJSUIBW 0} UINJa) 0} Spaau widl-1abug)
Yim s)doad sajqeus jey) ao1nes e apiacid jim s)HIND SYyL

"padojanap Jayuny aq |IM (SLHND)
SWea) yjesH |BlUSly ANUNWLIOD JO UOHOUN) JUBLND 8y

(LHWO) sweal yesy [ejuspy Ajunwwod
‘g|doad oGt A|9rewixoidde Jo peojased |ejo)

Buiobuo ue aney pue seah Jad s|doad mau 05| Ajsjewixoidde
yoddns 0) ®8o1M8S uonuaalal AJeT syl Joj wie app

i
{



ic

|opow

SOA SOA SaA mau ay| {¢
sjiun Jayjo
SBA oN oN 3500 pue

asienua)d (z

Aeped fjup Buiyiou og (i

oN oN

"MO}Sq HEYD U} Ul UMOYS S|
U01303I3S 40} suoseal ay) yim Buole suondo sy jo Alewwns y

‘wua) Buoj ayy u) sgepioye
S| pue yosessal 2911oeid )s9q Aq paxoeq si J ‘juem sydoad
1220] MOUS} OM JEYM UNM Ylog Bul| Ul S| uoido siy . “Buisodoud
8IE oM Jey] aJED 10 jopow mau 3y} s) uondo pay) ey

‘AlUNWWoo 118y} ut paseq
pue [eJ0] 8ie S3DJAISS 1S8q 8y} ‘awl) sy} jo jsow ‘sidoad
JSOW 104 Jey) sn s|i9} Jey) YoIeasal Jo Jo| B S| alay) Pue Juem
a|doad [e00] JeyM JOU S| SIU} MOUY M asnedaq uondo siy}
pajoales app “a1nyng ay; ul }gap ojul HujoB sn dojs pinom siy)
pue 0} pasu am Jey) ASuow 3y} SAeS 0} 9|ge 8Q PiNOM oM
siy} Buiop Ag 'SuoIje20] JoM3) Ul WD} S||BJUSD pUB Syun
jusnedul JUSLIND INO JO SWOS 550D 0} Sem uoljdo puodes ay )

"}gep Ojul I0W pue 310w 0f pjnom sm
Se SIOIAISS JO 10| B 9S0j0 0} QAEY PINOM SM B} JoA0 'Buiop
21 OM SE UO Pallied oM JI 0S|y “1aJ}aq Jo| B aq pinoa Asyj jnq
poof aie s301AI19S 1N MOUY M IsNedaq pajosfal sem uondo
SIYL "MOU BJE 8M SE SNUIJUOI pue BulYlou Op 0} SEM ISl 3y |
'suofjdo ajqexiom 9ay} AJUO Yum Yo} S1oMm am pus oy} uj

18bpnq ino
ulyym aAl 03 ‘al ‘wis) Buol sy; Ui sjqeulelsns Ajleoueuy ag (¢

_u:m ‘pUom ay) Jo
184 3y} pue 3N ay) ul yjog 291j9e1d 3599 343 YIm Bul| Ut ag (Z

9|doad |edo| Jo spasu payjuap ay; 18aly (|

Jsnw [spow
201A198 mau Aue jey) a1em suoldo 9say) SSOSSE 0} pasn am
B1I8)40 8] “81niny SY} Ul S3IIAIBS 1IN0 BpiA0id O} }sag Moy 4O
suoydo jJusiayip jo JIaquinu e Je payoo| saey ‘sisuped aled
fe1o0s pue yjreay ino yum Buoje ‘am sieak om) Jsed sy} Jono

pelopisuos am suondo Jeyin ¢

9¢

e
s

¥ W

'Siseq juswiuiodde ue uo s3I 3y} UIYIM JO SWIOY UMO
Jlay ul Jaype sjdoad Buiuoddns uodn paoejd aq [m a1jusD
80In0SaY pue AIBA0D9Y M3U INo JO siseyds sy} JOSASMOH
"voddns juanedul wisl-poys aiinbas oym sienpiaipul 1oy Spag
Z€ oney 1l 3lis Mied suljjoH ayj uo sbuipjing paysjqinas
Ul paseq aq [jim 24jusD 921n0say pue A1anooay s,uojbuiieps

uojbuiiiesn

"SiSeq Juawjuiodde ue uo a13uad 3y} UIYPM JO SUIOY UMO
Jiayy up teyye sjdoad Buipoddns uodn paoeld eq m ajuen
a2IN0saYy pue AISA093Y MBU INo 4o siseydwa ay) JOASMOH
‘Hoddns Juaijedu) wia} 1oys annbai oym SEENPIAIPUL 10y Spaq ZE
SAEY [[IM }] *B)IS UN0D $801D A3jsead papus)xa pue paysiqingol
SU} ul paseq 8q JIm a1jua 33IN0saY pue AIan0Y SusieH 1S

SusjaH 15

'siseq juawjuiodde
UB U0 31)udd 3y} UIYIM 10 SWOoY Umo Jisy} ul Jaype ajdoad
Buioddns uodn pase|d aqj|im s53us) 821N0saY pue AIancday
Mau Ino jo siseydwe sy) 19namoH "Hoddns jusiiedul wia}
-Hoys ainbal oym S|enpinipul 10} Spaq €€ 3ARY ||IM }| HUn
AsIpiays aui wouy papiroid 8q 0} BNURUOD [IM SSIIAISS By}
Apeas are sasiwald Mau By} [IUN BWUESW By} U] JoISIP
As|smouy| sy} ul pajonisuod aq o} Buiping mau e ul paseq
3q 0} pauue|d S| 813Ua) 92iN0SaY pue AISA009Y S;AB|SMOUY

Aojsmouy

l

0

3

2

14

14



Page 35

AR

158'508'02 jejol
000°00%'L | S1s00 Aed-UoN 1oyl pue sBrug pajewsgy
LS8‘sop 6L lejoL
bvo'leh'S uo)Buniepp
€22'090'G i Aa|smouy
v.6'69%'G sus|eH 1S
Lo'sye'e uojjeH

:9q 0] }SED210} BJe )00 Bujuuny ainjny oy |

, 196pnq ejo} sisniy
8y} JO %0E PUNOIE O} JUNOWE [|IM SISOD UO BY} YIM YDIym
‘1eak uad uohpw LZF 1S0D M BuyIOM JO [apow mau By

£1S0D I [[IM Y31 MOH

82 SSIISHE

"apinoid am s801A19S 3y} J0 Ajjenb
ayy Buirosdun se flem se — uus) Buol sy} ul gjqeuresns aq
OSs|e [jm pue sdueleq 1081103 oy ol Buipuny sy} Buuq |m
Ispow mau ay} "jqap jealb ojul of |Im am sy oyl uo Aues
am §| 'saneoal ) Asuow ay) uey} J1aybly si saoIAIBS Y)eay
lelusw ynpe sjisnit ay) uo Buipusads Jo Jans) Jualund ay|

JS9AUI S| Dd 8Y) ASuow ay) 10} anjea
spiroid Asy) pue eale ay} Jo spasu ay} o} sjeudoidde are
sjesodoud Ino jeyy paysies ase s) Dd 9y} ssejun sabueyd
9S3Y) S)el jouued am paspu] "aAode S10d 8yl Jo yoes
uyim sssuped Buluoissiwwod 1no jo jeacidde sy} yoss osje
Him am sjesodoud uno 1oy [eaoidde inoA Buiuieb o} uonippe uj

$92IN0g 3WOooU| J3Y}0

Buluoissiwwo) ainseg
S1.2d 43Y)0

19d uojbuiiiepp

10d suslBH IS [ ]

19d £Asjsmouy []

10d uojjeH

10d uebip g
ybian ‘uoyysy [

“Uollilin G6F
sl /-9002 10} dwooul [ej0} Y] "I Dd Yoes o} ajeuojuodord
wol sawod Bujpun) no ||B I9ym SMOYS Mojeq Weyd ay|

‘uojbuiepn
pue sus|aH 1S ‘A9[smouyt 'uojeH 'ueBipp p ybia ‘uolysy
S10d [eD0] 2A) 8y} WO SSWOD SA19931 am Buipuny ay) jo
%98 'Isnil SHN diysiauped sybnolog G ay} 104 'sao1nes
Ino (104 Aed) uoISSILIWOD OUM S]Dd WOY SOWOD SAIFILI
am jeyl Asuow ay) 'sjsniL 1apiaoid yiesy [ejusw e sy

Ziepotl mseu ayy Jog Aed Ja ot

sbeyn



Page 36

A@i3eeg v eBuBLD

303 uoKe)INSU0ddgndsybnoioqg mmm
Je aJis gam uno 29s aseayd

‘uogewojui ajep o} dn jo4

“Isif sy} o) pappe aq
Aew sBuyssw aygnd soyuny .

i€

"ajqissod se jeuuou se aq |im sBuaaly “suolsenb 1noA
Jomsue o} jussaid aq 0s|e J|im S92IIBS Yl ledH [eJus|y JINpY
o} s|qisuodsa) aie oym Isni] sy} woly sisbeuepy lojusg
"salbajel)s yjjesH |elusiy A pajeyioe} oq Jm sbunesw ||y

uojjeq wnipejs wd), 90'80°¢¢C
Aajsmoudd apng Ay
wooy AsidsQ wdg 90'80°L1
uojbuiLieps anus) Aemajes) wd} 90°80°20
SuUsaH }S SAO wdz 90'80°€0
Aoysmouyy ayung Agyny
wooy AaidsQ wdg 90°20°S2
uojjeH SSUpIp wnipejg wdg 90°20°81
uoj)buriiep siaqueyd
[1dUnoy |feH umo] wdg 90°20°LL
SuseH 1S SAD weg| 90°20°90
Aajsmouyy Aepp D110
ajng uojiny je Lajjes weg| 90'90°0¢
SusfeH 3§ 8 WOOY ||leH umol wdg 90901 ¢
uojjer ajuan
Aunwwo) spjsysyisen wegl 90°90'9L
uojbuiriep) anuss Aemales) wel| 90'90°60
anuap  awll uels ajeq

+»U0 pfa3y aq jim
sbuneasw oqnd ‘ease 1nok uy sabueys ayy ssnoasip of

1squisidag ul Bunssw e je pieog jsni] pue
wes| AlN0aX3 sisni) 9y} Aq paIopISu0d aq |IM SJUSWILLIOY

"sa|bejelng yjesH [eiuspy wouy s|ge|ieAe ag Jim saidod prey
PuE o)sqam }N'02'UonEe}NSU0IIqndsybnoloqgs Mmm
ay} uo paysygnd aq poAlgoal  SJUBWIWOD ||y

"900¢ ¥snbny yipg 8y} Ipun
900Z 8unp ISL wouy uni [im uoneynsuod ofqgnd |ewlo) sy

éixeu susadey jey

0e sonea

3N°02-uoReYNSU0IDIgNdsyBnoloqs mmm

Je paSSI00E 9q UBD UOISIAA |GEPEOIUMOP
e 10 ‘(5A0QE S|iejop) s3o salbajens yjesH jejusyy ay)
woy palddns aq ued Juswnsop siy} Jo saded |euoyIpPY

6001 682 1910
:Buixeq o

"(19}e} uanib aqg Aew Jamsue
ay) 0s sjiejap J0Bju0D SABY| 0} BARY ABWL NOA JuSWIWOD B
Buines) uey} Jayies uoisanb e Bupjse ale noA i) pioye)s
Suukq Jo 9yesy Malpuy 104 3SE pue LOOL 87 1910

Bujuoydajayl e
'xoq Jelqns sy; ui sybnolog g, spiom au} jnd aseajd

3n°09°uone)NSsuoIDlIqndsybnoloqs@uocie)nsuos

Buieury o

940 0EN

Ja)sayouepy

$9|093

198413 Haqly

9sNoH uosiaws 100]4 yYig
salbajens yieaH |ejuspy
uone}nNsSuog oliqnd s,ybnolog g ay

Bunum e

:eIA saifajens
yllesH [ejualy 0} suoisenb pue SJUBWIWIOD PUSS UBD NOA

‘uo passed Bujaq sweu 1noA JnoyIm
SN 0] paplemio} g UBD SJUSLLWOD INOA '8S00YD 0S NOA i
‘ley} painsse aq pue way} 0} yeads UED NOA “SJUSWILIOD
Inok an@ad) o} Koueynsuod alesyyesy juspuadspul ue
selbalenS ujesH [BJUSIY PaJiAUL SABY SM JUSWNI0P SIY]
Inoqe Aj@ey yeads o0} 9|ge ale noA ey} ainsud of ‘weay)
Anusp) Aew jey; uopsanb e Bupise 10 maiA e Buissaidxa Jnoqe
snoaau aq osje Aew o|doad sulos suoseal jo abuel e 104

“uiyl noA yeym Jesy o} Juem am ui a1e nok uoysod
Janayalypn suolisenb alow yse o) Juem nok pue uoiew.o
ybnoua aney jou Aew )| 519430 10} Uy 8)€) 0} YoNUI 00} Sney ABW
}1 ajdoad awos 104 "UOIJBWLIOJUI JO S)O| SUIEJUOSD JUSWINIOP SIY L,

&MUyl noA op jey

<5



£e

"1 € 9bed uo pajiejap sjuaAa uole)Nsuo) oljgnd
3y} JO AuE Je Sjuswuiod oA Jwgns ued nok AlaAieuId)y
'900¢ 1snbny yipg uo wdg Aq (pg 96ed uo sjie}ap JoBIU0D)
salfelens uyjesH |ejusiy O} SUBWIWOD wINjal ases|d

Page 37

" -+ Aes 0} 8y pinom pue sasjAIBs Yijeay Jejuaul ynpe Jo uojsiroid ayj o) sabueyo
pasodoud ayy Buipiebas yuawinaop .ia31ag oy 104 abueyn, sy} peas aney |

(paiinbai se s)aays [euoyippe 8sn oses|d)

198YS Yorqpes.

219 yoejep ssesld




Page 38

o)

usIpINY,

O TrSYn” v LTS roei b onfrif Q2 Sy (oD € SHO Rt v 3 i e

Coppses S o) o0 sy I o (ol PLOYOY STE10 © = & of €5 Coprsuess {2 prgfd (o8
e W i 0 v e 0d LS (REFSTER) A0 < cosyim E0RE e T fy

aseulyD
YRR E SRR FERIE
CHIYIRER LY EE B HER RS HEWEYE °rL0p09 52610
b SHADEHEEZHELE  EEEREND SN XS LR

lewog
"aquep Jew odem 00s NY NNul ueewnile} eeuocop ulfeebey nny nuAexepn 1ol xappes ebeexuoojsiel
o/ epeepebn| eoebew Baays y0r90 7810 9eMm ‘Aewunhie; 0o| ajey pebn| copeAl oysey peeu)
pAeyr| ueejos! pee ewe ‘ueBiusWM{Op UBSCEES NY 00 O|ER} BWE UIADC|ER,NS XEM ABYSP3) PER IpPeH

19efung

Lp,ole HEBER] .2 P HEDE |38 QB QI £ VRIRS
29 S0P i 1DRY 99192 Ohuu .0 2 B3 MR Pik VF) M 12 S (2R 122 92 £ ¥/ OYIOSTEL0 92
42 'Q iR UOE BRJ R uB HAY JUE 4 D SRS 22 R34 ADE 23 WiaH i R.EHA HA| B &

{PuUiH

g QUiktin o lulie [y Jr Yb p MELSD B [bhlie )0 bR N Job hebk 1 wbible
12 Dnkal(p )t deele LIHRR Lible e DR Mb ki bk 19 LuiBih |phie Lehd finle Eib dh 2t £/ 0Y99 G26L0
bbb 3 BRIk fr Lnlk (p) DibCie ) MpIod BE bite Lb 3 BRIk LL6h 1K 3o Mie L b S Jehte dh BUN® B hile db

neseno

BEIR FhE (Plile BPR] 1Y) R HIa% ke B 18 (DI TR §8 W L1 20k B2R)R e he

Bnie 1miR SRR 12ikde 2h 20l BLOPRSE 1910 RF 1hE 1P R Wiclh KBRS Jbble PPLHIRT Ik hie

ejbueg
| kb2 beldlold) Blblke Dbl kil (DS RSt BIRIOMD Madin bAKRN) Bk | kbl
QBRE bIDNADY Blidelln ke ‘kbIlob BIBLGY Aihil BIRS Blidslie | kéie IR BIRE B 20089 62610
‘19 DAY Libbin BIRIG! Slldie A Mk Mlallo hin ‘St SO L B 1)) @ladc Allolofhs 50 il Blilelie

2igery

VL0V §E6L0° 15 v (g e e ¥R Fed e ey g 5T fro{T g e e
191 107 g™ 157 pimy € 0 Faeed o apo By |§ ¢ (0 e ey e e

g
FEOY PAL DR/ EAP o 3en Yoy D wereey Aoy D7~

e A 1 ey i U L e e NS (e e T M e 1 e T S T T e

ysiibuz
"0EBq NOA [|ED 0} 18)81d13)u Suoydale) B 10} abUELIR [IM SAA “Jsquinu
suoydaje} 1noA upm sayjabio) ‘sewly 2a.y) abenbuel JnoA jo sweu ay) J1BlS Y2099 SZ610 |2 ‘abenbue;
4NoA cju paje|suell §i sAeY O} UsiM NOA 10 JUSWINOOP SIY) INCGE SJUSILOD JO SUoNsanb Aue saey nof §)

e



5 B%PS&gghs Partnership m

NHS Trust
APPEND\X 2.

/

Responses to Queries
for the
Joint Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Re: ‘Change for the Better’

A Consultation on proposals for
delivering a New Model of Care for
Adults and Older People with
Functional Mental Health Problems




Page 40



Page 41

5 Boroughs Partnership

NHS Trust

Issues for Consideration by the Statutory Joint Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Re: Improving Servicés for Adults with Mental Health Needs

5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust

1. Introduction to Response:

The Trust thanks the borough Overview and Scrutiny Committees for convening a
Joint Committee and for the opportunity to provide more information and responses
to queries in respect of the ‘Change for the Better' consultation on the proposals for
a new model of care.

We must be mindful that the model relates only to adults of working age and older
people with functional mental health problems, though review of other elements of
the Trust’s services in relation to the latest Commissioning Strategies for Children
and Older People will need to be undertaken in the future.

The Trust would also wish to remind Committee members that the proposals provide
a model framework for service delivery, the details for implementation of which
require to be developed with partner agencies in each of the boroughs. The
proposals provide a consistent and cohesive network for the provision of effective
and non-post-code discriminated services for the benefit of service users.

The impetus and direction of the proposed changes has been stimulated and led by
comments that service users and their families have been making to the Trust
through various forums since 2004. This feedback and consultation has been
obtained through both informal and formal mechanisms and it must be recognised
that some of the issues raised present real challenges to professional groups and to
current ways of working.

Similarly, the development and subsequent approval of the Comprehensive Mental
Health and Social Care Commissioning Strategy for Adults of Working Age for
Halton, Knowsley, St Helens and Warrington provided the basis for the development
of the model and referred to the evidence of effective service delivery. The Model
was developed alongside the commissioning project group work and the first draft
was presented to the Strategic Commissioning Programme Board, comprlsmg of
PCT Chief Executives and Directors of Social Care, at its meeting on 10" February
2006.

The presentation to be given today is specmcally related to the queries received from
the Committee via Mr Mike Wyatt dated 26" July 2006 and the slides follow the
format of that paper, of which we are assuming that you will have received prior
copy.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutmy Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

10f 18

33



Page 42

Whilst aware that the functions of the Overview and Scrutiny committee is to
scrutinise and comment upon the proposals with regard to the adequacy of
consultation and whether the proposals would not be in the interests of the health
service in the three boroughs, the Trust has sought to provide wider information in
this response. The presentation is thus quite lengthy and there are supplementary
items of information that are provided for the benefit of reference by committee
members. However, should there be need for any further reference material, please
advise.

2. Impact on Service Users and Carers

Q. 2.1. i) The reports referred to would seem to indicate a tightening of eligibility
criteria across mental health services.

The proposals contained in ‘Change for the Better' respond to the content of the
Comprehensive Mental Health and Social Care Commissioning Strategy for
Adults in Halton, Knowsley, St Helens and Warrington. (See also separate
paper relating the Commissioning intent with the proposed model).

People are currently accessing beds when they do not need to. A recent audit
showed that between 15 and 40% of people admiited to an in-patient bed, do
not need to be there (Point Prevalence Audit July 2006).

We are aware of differences in Eligibility Criteria in different Local Authorities for
services and also for the health provision of Community Mental Health Teams
(CMHTSs) in some boroughs. Service eligibility criteria within the proposed
model are to be subject to joint work with health commissioners and Local
Authorities in respect of in-patient admission and the Effective Care Co-
ordination policy respectively. This work to be undertaken post-consultation on
the outline model.

The proposed model is about ensuring service users receive the most
appropriate level of services in the least restrictive environment and to ensure
that those most in need of services get access to them.

In some of our localities service users would be best served by specialist
mental health community services. Currently not all service users are able to
access these services for a number of reasons, for example service not
currently funded or service provided for working aged adults only.

Q.2.1.ij) This is likely to be as a result of the decrease in in-patient beds.

The reduction in in-patient beds reflects National Policy and best practice of
providing treatment and care in the least restrictive manner. The provision of
effective ‘front-end’ access services and effective alternatives to admission will
result in the current criteria for admission to acute care to be properly applied.
This has not been possible due the community infrastructure not being fully
complete and cohesively integrated. The Commissioning Strategy notes that
the ‘amount of in-patient provision required more offen depends on, and is a
function of, the range of other services available locally’.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06
20f18

-~ 3"



Page 43

The Commissioning Strategy also notes the relative over-supply of beds in the
boroughs.

The Royal College of Psychiatrists has provided advice and recommendations
for the numbers of beds required per head of population, and the lower level is
that which is appropriate when the community services are developed and in
place to provide appropriate alternatives.

The approach taken by the model is also being championed in the recently
published 10 NHS High Impact Changes for Mental Health Service. (Ref:
Number 1 of the 10 Key High Impact Changes")

It will always be the case that some service users will require a stay in hospital
(sometimes compulsorily) however all efforts should be made to ensure that
alternatives to in-patient hospital care are not more appropriate.

The Commissioning Strategy also advises of the need to have and apply clear
and robust specifications for eligibility criteria to operate at all levels of service.
(Ref. Page 15, Para 11 of Commissioning Strategy) in addition the Strategy
describes the criteria for use of Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit beds as distinct
from acute care beds (Ref. Page 46).

In support of this the NHS has invested significantly in community-based
services since the introduction of the Mental Health NSF. Many of the
community-based services are already in place for example Crisis Resolution
and Home Treatment, Assertive Outreach, Early Intervention in Psychosis.

Community Mental Health Teams have been in place for a number of years.

‘Change for the Better’ will ensure all localities have community services in
‘place which meet the best practice standard (i.e. Policy Implementation Guide
Compliant)

Q. 2.1. ifi). The model is not clear about the impact that this will have for service
users and carers in the Boroughs.

For many service users there is currently no alternative to a hospital admission,
resulting in a period away from the families, friends and work, which may have
been avoidable. Patient surveys (locally and nationally) indicate that some
patients find psychiatric hospitals threatening and unsafe environments with
poor staffing levels and thus poor levels of service user staff interaction. This
model will reduce the need for admission and, for many people, actually shorten
the amount of time that they will remain as an in-patient. The increased staffing

levels will help improve the time available for staff to engage in therapeutic
interactions.

' Care Services Improvement Partnership, 10 High Impact Changes for Mental Health, 20" June
2006. An Executive Summary is also available.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

30f18



Page 44

The new model proposes the full development and establishment of crisis
teams in all boroughs who will work with service users and carers in an
alternative environment to an in-patient setting, this may be the person’s own
home or at another location.

For carers, the main theme has been about how to negotiate their way through
the various health and social care systems. The introduction of Access and
Advice services (referred to as Single Points of Access (SPAs) in the
Commnssnonlng Strategy, page 63) should improve this. These services provide
expertise in assessment, gate-keeping and ‘sign-posting’. Proposals to
establish a Resource and Recovery Centres (ref. Page 15, section3, para. 12 of
Commissioning Strategy) have been welcomed by service users, carers and
staff alike.

Some carers and service users have expressed dissatisfaction with the location
of Hollins Park for services and have asked that consideration be glven to
locating the Warrington RRC in the centre of the Town.

Q. 2.1iv). The model is also unclear about any arrangements to ensure the
safety and effective risk management of issues relating to individuals through
the transition of services.

The delivery of safe services is a key priority for the Trust now and will continue
to be so in the future. We will continue to develop joint protocols for admission
and discharge and develop care pathways with our partner organisations.

As with any of the services provided by the Trust, the risks of service delivery
are assessed as part of the Trust’s Risk Assurance Framework and through its
risk management systems. All of which have been subject to external scrutiny
and audit.and evaluated as providing significant assurance.

Additionally, partners and service users will be involved in the detailed planning
and implementation of services. The Trust will continue its acknowledged high
level of general involvement of its services users in its activities.

The assessment of risks for an individual service user will continue to be
undertaken within the clinical process of Effective Care Co-ordination.

Q.2.2. There are concerns about the possible impact on other aspects of 5
Boroughs work, notably the Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services,
where there is no clarity in the proposals outlined.

‘Change for the Better’ is about services for adults and older people who have
functional mental health problems and was developed at a time when there was
no agreed or cohesive CAMHS Commissioning Strategy. The proposals
neither enhance nor detract from the provision of CAMHS services.

Arrangements from transition of individuals from CAMHS to Adult services will
continue as now.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

- 40f18



Page 45

Commissioners across the four boroughs of Halton, Knowsley, St Helens and
Warrington have very recently developed a CAMHS strategy. The recently
appointed Director of CAMHS and Psychological Therapy Services will be
meeting with each of the Local Authority Directors with responsibility for
Children’s Services to develop a response to the commissioning strategy.
Notwithstanding this, the issues that face CAMHS service continue to be
progressed.

Q. 2.3. The Committee is concerned that the proposals do not properly meet
the needs of a number of specific groups including:-

i) Older people with functional mental health needs

Many of the services not previously accessible to older people will be
accessible to them in the new mode! e.g. Crisis Resolution and Home
Treatment, and psychological therapies via enhanced day therapy
provision. We have reviewed the various policy guidance documents
and have not found anything that contradicts our position in respect of
providing appropriate care and environments for people who are
vulnerable of whatever age. We take the issue of caring for vulnerable
people very seriously.

ii) People with dual diagnosis i.e. drug and/or alcohol and mental health
problems.

The presentations have all clearly stated that the services will be
accessible, as they are now, to people with a dual diagnosis much in
the same way that services are for people with Schizophrenia. The
services for people without mental health problems who have a drug or
alcohol problem are managed through a separate service, which is not
part of the consultation - indeed some of these services are currently
being put out to tender by commissioners.

There is a need for further dialogue with commissioners on the delivery
model for substance misuse services.

iii) People presently living in secure environments

Services for people who require secure services are not part of the
model proposals or this consultation. These are specialist services and
are commissioned by the specialist commissioning team and are
provided in a number of locations across the North West (eg the Scott
Clinic, John Denmark Unit and Ashworth Hospital) and Nationally (e.g.
Learning Disability at Rampton Hospital and the unit for Dangerous
People with a Severe Personality Disorder at Rampton and
Broadmoor) Hospital). Those secure services provided on the Hollins
Park site are also commissioned by the specialist commissioners and
are not included in the proposals for change.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

) ' 50f§9



Page 46

iv) People with personality disorders

This is a real challenge for all the health and social care community.
Some estimates indicate as many as 1 in 20 people have a personality
disorder. Most people with a personality disorder will not require the
skills of specialist Mental Health Trusts, though changes in legislation
may alter this position. Services are not currently commissioned from
the 5 Boroughs Partnership for those people with a pure personality
disorder and no mental iliness. In the new model, people with a mental
illness and a personality disorder will continue to be able to access
treatment. '

V) Young people aged 16-17 years.

The position re: transition arrangements is unaltered by these
proposals and is currently being addressed through the Children'’s
Strategic Commissioning and planning route. The CAMHs
Commissioning Strategy identifies the deficit of services for young
people of 16-19 years. This continues to be actively addressed by
Health and Social Care.

The current deficits in service provision for young people need to be
addressed through the implementation of the CAMHs Commissioning
Strategy with commissioners pursuing the development of strong and
seamless services for young people via whichever provider(s) they
choose.

The Trust agrees that this is an area of high priority and is committed to
working with commissioners and other partners to develop a range of
services for young people

Q. 2.4.i)). The Committee also has concerns about the proposals to mix in-
patient settings for older people and younger adults. The Committee believes
that this is contrary to acknowledged good pracfice.

This is currently the position in two out of the four Boroughs for older people
(Knowsley and St Helens), and has been for some time, in accordance with
locally commissioned service patterns.

All adult services, on occasions, have children aged 16-17 admitted, and more
occasionally, children under the age of 16 have to be admitted as a last resort

due to there being no alternatives other than paediatric wards. Neither of these
options is satisfactory. (See also 2.4.ii)

The model is intended to reduce the risk for vuinerable people, of whatever age,
in in-patient settings. We are committed to ensuring all vulnerable people are
risk assessed and that the current environments are remodelled to provide
separate areas within wards. The model also provides enhanced staffing in in-
patient areas, which will allow 1-1 observation when required.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

6 of 18
St



Page 47

The Trust does not believe the proposals are contrary to current best practice
guidance and have written to Local Authorities seeking clarification as to the
Policy Guidance that it is thought that this approach breeches. To date we have
not received any specific information. However, we are continuing to review the
guidance and liaise with advisors of the Strategic Health Authority on this, and if
there is further guidance that we have not considered then we would be happy
to consider that guidance.

Q. 2.4.ij) . The Committee is also concerned that people under the age of 18
may be admitted fo adult wards.

As noted earlier, the model will not alter the current position in the short term
and requires consideration and action by health service commissioners
regarding shortfalls of in-patient provision for young people.

Currently, young people under 18 are admitted to our in-patient wards, the
alternative is, on occasion, a paediatric ward, neither of which is ideal. When a
child is admitted to an in-patient ward all our staff have access to support from
our Full-time Child Protection Specialist and access to the Mental Health Act
Commission as described previously.

The Trust notifies the Mental Health Act Commission of every admission of a
minor (under 16 years) into an adult in-patient bed. A visit is then made by the
Commission to scrutinise the arrangements made to make care as appropriate
as possible. A one to one nurse to patient ratio tends to be required. There
have been 30+ admissions of young persons under the age of 17 years onto
adult wards in the last year.

Cheshire and Merseyside have one of the lowest numbers of Tier 4 beds for
this age group in the country, though agreement has been reached to provide
more beds in the future. Very young children are admitted to Alder Hey
provision and adolescents to a unit in Chester.

The development of Early Intervention Services (EIS) will help this position but
not in the short term (services take up to three years to become operating at
capacity). Not all Boroughs have a funded established EIS, in ‘Change for the
Better' this will be resolved '

Q.2.5. There are concerns about the impact on alcohol services for adults and
older people; the proposals contain a reduction of allocated beds for alcohol
detoxification.

Currently, no funded bed exists for alcohol detoxification, nor will there or
should there be in the new model. All but the most highly complex alcohol
detoxification is carried out in the community. Complex alcohol detoxification
often requires proximity to and the back-up of general medical care and
intervention.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

o 7 of 18
- At

e



Page 48

3. Financial Information

Q. 3.1. The proposals in the plan are not supported by robust financial data. It
is not possible to identify the financial impact on services in the 3 Boroughs and

- the Committee believes that until this issue is addressed it will not be possible
to complete the scrutiny exercise.

The financial data continues to be finessed and we have shared that
financial detail available at the moment through individual iterative Borough
meetings with both Health and Local Authority partners. This position is
historically complex but we have committed to share further information. There
is currently in train a process (Foundation Trust (FT) Diagnostic), which will
result in a transparent position regarding funding being agreed between the
PCT and the Trust. This information will be available before the close of
consultation for the statutory agencies. The model is predicated upon the
current level of investment by each PCT continuing at its current level.

Q. 3.2. There are a number of concems in relation to financial issues, which are
nof clear in the proposals, including details of the impact of the £1m savings
identified from back office functions and the £2.6m savings from cost releasing
efficiency savings, which are not clearly stated in the proposals.

Currently funding is identified to manage the implementation of the new model;
this budget is required for consultation, staff training and development. As part
of our cost-efficiency action back office functions are expected to contribute to
the reduction of the over-spend. The £2.6m relates to ‘Gershon’ action

requirements, which is also applicable to Local Authorities. The £1m corporate

contribution will limit the impact on front-line services and the Trust will manage
this.

Q. 3.3. The model of care seems heavily reliant on significant capital
investments in the Resource and Recovery Centres (RRCs). There is no clarity
about the likelihood of this funding or contingency plans should the funding not
materialise.

The funding is from our capital funding and it is available now for the minof (less
than £200k) alterations. Funding has also been identified from the Trust’s
capital programme for work required in Peasley Cross Court.

The redevelopment of the Sherdley unit in the long term is subject to a Strategic
Outline Business Case (SOBC).

A number of people have expressed the view that the in-patient services at
Hollins Park should be relocated to central Warrington. We are not opposed to
this idea, however, the proposals to develop in-patient services in Warrington
does not form part of the current proposals, and would be subject to an SOBC.

Q.3.4 There is no clarity in relation to transitional resources. A significant shift

in the type of services provided is likely to lead to the need for fransitional
resources to be invested, which will facilitate shifts in services.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

8 of 18
Y



Page 49

The “Transitional” resources in fact have been invested over the last three
years and equate to several £million (i.e. see previous details of community
service developments). Additional resource has been allocated to the Trust to
manage the latter stages of implementation of the model of circa £0.5million.

Q. 3.5. There are concerns about the workforce implications and, in particular,
the impact on recruitment and the basis for decisions about filling posts.

The Trust is currently holding a significant number of vacancies at present,
around 10% of total. The model sees an overall reduction in staff
numbers, ailthough through re-deployment, enhanced staffing will be
available for some services, e.g. in-patient facilities in RRCs. It is
anticipated that existing staff will fill the vast majority of posts identified in the
new model.

The process for this will follow agreed best HR practice for Trust staff, which
was developed and agreed with staff side representatives.

The Director of Workforce and Development in the Trust will be working with his
equivalents in Local Authorities to ensure the implications of the various HR
policies are understood and any action required is agreed with the Local
Authority.

These issues will need to formally agreed as part of the Partnership -
Agreements most of which are in the process of being formally negotiated

Q. 3.6. The Committee is particularly concerned that Ashton, Leigh and Wigan
do not appear to be properly factored in to the recovery plans. The Committee
acknowledge a statement that they are not included in the process but feels that
there is a lack of clarity about the financial impact of this.

Wigan services have to contribute to any Cash Release Efficieny Savings
(CRES). In addition, Ashton, Wigan and Leigh PCT isactually wanting to
continue to increase the PCT investment in Mental Health.

The FT diagnostic will provide transparent and agreed data for all.

Q. 3.7. The committee would like to know what the budget is for atypical drugs
and a comparison of spends in each borough.

The previous figures that were made available were from third party provider
organisations and had not been validated by the Trust, and they showed
significant variation that requires further review.

We are keen to have accurate information regarding prescribing and

expenditure and have commissioned a member of the Medical teant to conduct
an Audit in August. The issue is as much a governance issue as a financial one
and the Trust would expect adherence to best practice guidelines by all parties

issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

90of 18



Page 50

The developing SLA will cover the governance arrangements costs and
practices associated with the prescribing of atypical anti-psychotic medications.

Q.3.8. There are concerns about the impact on out of borough placements.
What are the current arrangements for joint placement?

The model proposes no changes to Health funded out of area treatments, the
costs for which are currently met by the PCT.

Social Care out of borough placements will clearly remain the responsibility of
the Local Authority and are not expected to be subject to, or impacted by, the
proposal of ‘Change for the Better'.

Q.3.9. Project management - funding for this and process. Will partners have a
place on the project board?

Subject to conclusion of Consultation we would wish to establish local
implementation teams (many based on existing multi agency structures). It is
envisaged we will establish a Programme Board for the implementation of
‘Change for the Better’ and we would hope that Local Authority officers would
be part of the Project Board.

Q. 3.10. Future funding priorities - given the pace of Government change we
may have to look at a different model in the future. How can we resolve this?

We can only work with existing policy and it would be inappropriate to agree
finances on unconfirmed policy. The proposed model is not only based on
evidence it is also congruent with national policy. Both health and social care
policy is subject to change continually in association with national policy
direction and ongoing research into practice. .

Q. 3.11. The Committee would like reassurance that finance invested by
individual Boroughs remains within that Borough and is not used to subsidise
other boroughs.

In respect of PCT investment this will be the case should the option for 4 RRC
be approved. Clearly a number of indirect costs are apportioned across all of
the five boroughs, e.g. Child Protection, Mental Health Act Managers, and
Control of Infection.

It is possible that the impact of Patient Choice may affect this in the longer term,
however, we estimate this will be marginal.

However, if a two-centre more centralised model is adopted, the money will
follow patients as this service may be provided from 2 boroughs (i.e. on 2 sites
not four. We hope this is not the case but this remains an option within the
consultation. :

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

“ ,10 %ﬁ



Page 51

4. In-Patient Beds

Q.4.1. There is some confusion in the various documents about the number of
in-patient beds. The Committee has concerns about the level of service for
people who would have been utilising these in-patient beds, particularly in the
light of the described over occupancy.

The proposed bed numbers reflect the Royal College of Psychiatrists
recommended lower level figures and are based on evidence nationally and
locally. The numbers are as per the consultation document. The picture is
slightly complicate due to the way occupancy is calculated i.e. figures include
people who are on home leave and people from another borough. The model is
based on future service delivery and configuration not the present i.e. the
demand for beds in the future will be different than it is today because of the
community service infrastructure.

It should be noted that the four boroughs have the benefit of a better developed
community infrastructure to build upon as a starting point for further
development than has been the case in some of the exemplar areas.

Q.4.2. The Committee were concemed that the proposals relating to in-patient
beds do not include psychiatric intensive care.

Currently, only Wigan borough has a Psychiatric Intensive Care unit (PICU).
Admission to a bed from another borough has been difficult at times.

These beds, and those new beds for which capital funds have been recently
obtained, are additional to the numbers of beds proposed within the model.
Funding for this service is outside of, and additional to, the current funding
arrangements and remains so in the future model. It is a commissioning
decision to fund or not to fund these beds.

The Commissioning Strategy states the need for at least one PICU with higher
levels of security. We will have a service available before the end of the year,
based on the Hollins Park site, that other Trusts are purchasing and would hope
that local negotiations with PCTs will conclude shortly.

The availability of local beds will reduce Out of Area Expenditure by PCTs on
such provision. The longer-term impact of effective community services in
admissions for intensive care will need to be evaluated.

Q.4.3. The impact on Council services, particularly the impact on the
infrastructure currently in place and the type of accommodation required in each
Local Authority given the planned bed reduction.

Most people with metal health problems live at home and the model aims to
ensure that this continues to be the case wherever possible.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

11 of 18



Page 52

It is important that people with mental health problems and their carers should
be able to access mainstream services, though some may need support to do
so. In many respects the Councils’ planning will have addressed this, as
capacity for services would have been designed to cater for all people
irrespective of their disability. It is recognised that some of those services are
currently not available to people at present in some boroughs.

The Commissioning Strategy refers to a range of supported accommodation
being required with modernised day provision, not in institutional settings.

The numbers of people who require some form of special accommodation is not
going to increase as an outcome of reducing the number of in-patient beds, but
they will continue to require care packages to be planned. People who are
currently likely to lose their homes or tenancies due to their illness and.
associated behaviours, would be provided with more support by community
services and thus prevented from reaching that position

5. Access to Services

Q.5.1. The Committee is concerned about proposals to develop access and
advice centres within each borough, as a single. gateway to specialist mental
health services. Based on the information provided, the Committee believes
that further thought should be given to access to mental health services being
from within Primary Care and other tier 2 services.

Access and Advice centres are an important part of the model. The
Commissioning Strategy refers to such services as Single Points of Access
(SAP) (Ref: p.63). The consultation is clear about what it proposes i.e. that
these services are based in local RRCs. It is critical that such a service exists in
a borough; it is less critical where it ‘sits’. The Trust is actively considering a
number of themes that have emerged from the consultation so far; this is one of
those themes.

Q. 5.2. The Committee are disappointed that the RRC model seems mainly
focussed on 9.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. services and the details of other out of office
hours services are sparse. The Committee would welcome further information
about staffing levels and implications for Council services out of hours.

The RRC is a 24-hour operation in terms of Crisis Resolution and Home
Treatment and In-patient Beds. Assertive Outreach will be PIG complaint 8am
to 8pm. Access and Advice services will also need to be operating 24/7.

The Enhanced Therapy sessions are indicated as 9-5 and from a resource
perspective that reflects the “quantity” of time available. As the service becomes
established we believe there will be opportunities to be more flexible about the
times the resource is made available. The trust will trial different patterns of
provision by spreading the available capacity over different hours and will
respond to feedback from service users.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

12 of 18

Y



Page 53

Q. The committee would like a comparison of Assertive Outreach Services —
what currently exists and what will be required.

Investment in Assertive Qutreach Services

Current Current Future Future
Investment* Caseload Investment Caseload
: 000s 000s
Halton £201 84 £426 84
St Helens £412 72 £393 72
Warrington £303 24 £303 60

* Services are being provided at higher levels of input than that for which
funding has been obtained through commissioning. The re-deployment of
resources from in-patient provision will allow these services to be fully
funded. In addition, working practices will be standardised to effect
efficient delivery in all the teams

The levels of Assertive Outreach will be Policy Implementation Guide (P1G)

compliant and be sufficient to meet the anticipated demand. The table above
reflects services from pre-PIG, currently and in the future

6. Impact on Council Services

Q. 6.1. The Model of Care refers to the impact on Council services including
social care, however, the Committee were concerned that detailed information
was not available.

The impact of new services, Assertive Outreach, Crisis Resolution, Early
- Intervention in Psychosis, and Access and Advice, -have and will provide a
positive impact for service users and carers.

In tackling the issue of stigma and prevention it is important that people with
mental health problems and their carers should be able to access mainstream
services.

In many respects, the Councils’ planning will have addressed this, as capacity
for services would have been designed to cater for all people irrespective of
their disability to help ensure that people with a mental health problem are able
to recover and resume their lives in mainstream society. This is inherent in
social inclusion policies

Delivering care in people’s own homes assists in the maintenance of the
existing family and friend support mechanisms and networks. These are very
often lost when a person is admitted to hospital, particularly for what may be a
lengthy period currently. This would be expected to have the positive impact of
reducing the levels of complex care packages.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

13 0f 18

47



Page 54

The Trust is committed to the further development and agreement of detail with
its partners for the delivery of integrated community services in support of the
model, should it be supported.

Q. 6.2. The committee are unclear as to the future functioning of community

mental health teams and how they will operate under the proposed model of
care.

In response to the Comprehensive Health and Social Care Commissioning
Strategy for Adults the NHS will target its resources on those with the greatest
need (Enhanced CPA). The Strategy identifies the continuing need for a team
of multi-disciplinary practitioner providing ongoing care and support to people
with serious mental health problems.

Detailed operational issues will be progressed locally with Local authority and
Trust staff.

Q. 6.3 The committee are concerned about the impact on Council day services
given the proposal to close day units.

The Commissioning Strategy suggests that the need for day services as
currently provided will ‘melt away’. (Ref: pp 66-67). Many Local Authorities have
already decommissioned day services. It is recognised that day services are not
the most effective way to deliver modern mental health services, nor the most
socially inclusive.

The Trust have offered to fund an independent assessment in respect of day
services, however Local Authority officers have indicated they have the capacity

to undertake this internally, discussions are ongoing on how best to progress
- this. : :

7. Consultation Processes

Q. 7.1. The committee are concerned that there was some evidence that the
consultation processes did not appear to be thorough and adequate.

This Consultation reflects the Cabinet Office’s code of practice for written
consultations in addition to the Overview and Scrutiny of Health Guidance
document. The six main criteria of the code are as stated below:

o  Consult widely throughout the process, allowing a minimum of 12
weeks for written consultation at least once during the development of the
policy.

e  Be clear about what your proposals are, who may be affected, what
questions are being asked and the time-scale for responses.

¢  Ensure that your consultation is clear, concise and widely accessible.

Issues paper for-Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06
14 of 18
43



Page 55

) Give feedback regardihg the responses received and how the
consultation process influenced the policy.

(NB: the formal consultation process has not yet reached this stage, as the
public consultation does not conclude until 24™ August, and the response
date for statutory agencies has been extended until 15" September)

*  Monitor the Trust’s effectiveness at consultation, including through the
use of a designated consultation co-ordinator.

(NB: This is being managed by an external company)

¢  Ensure your consultation follows better regulation best practice,
including carrying out a regulatory Impact Assessment if appropriate.

(NB: This is in process)

The Trust has followed these guidelines and has obtained advice from the
Strategic Health Authority and the Trust's solicitors.

The Trust expects to receive a Report of the Consultation on 30" August
and intends to issue copy to partners thereafter.

Directors of the Trust have also attended Impact Assessment meetings with
Local Authority Colleagues during April and May 06.

An information pack on the consultations is available.

Q. 7.2. The panel appreciate the extension of the timescale in relation to the
Statutory Joint Scrutiny Committee, but feel that the timescales for the public
consultation and the fact that they will still end on 24 August did not allow

proper time for the full and proper involvement of service users, carers and
staff.

Please refer also to the response above.

It should also be noted that the Trust has had the benefit of feedback and
consultation with service users and carers regarding service provision, both
informally and formally, over the last two years. E.g. via - The Acute Care
Forum, the Patient and Public Involvement Forum (PPIF) (15" May '06) and
local service user and carer groups. A formal consultation event, funded by St
Helens PCT in 2004 as part of a review of local services, identified service user
concerns and desires for changes in services, that have been further informed
and confirmed since that time.

A series of 19 meetings were held with staff during the period 29" March and
25" April with more than 500 staff attending these.

In addition to the planned public consultation events, presentations have been

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

15 of 18



Page 56

given to: _

Local Implementation Teams/Mental Health Partnership Boards
Professional Executive Committees of PCTs

PCT Boards

Overview and Scrutiny Committees in all boroughs

Executive Officers of Local Authorities

A total of 12 planned public meetings and 19 other events have been held since -
1* June 2006.

The formal Section 11 public consultation period of 12 weeks commenced on
1%t June '06 and Section 7 consultation commenced at the same time.

Q. 7.3. The committee are concerned that publicity relating to the consultation
process did not appear to be thorough and adequate, and there seemed to be a
general lack of awareness amongst key professional groups and the public
about the consultation process.

There was an issue initially in St Helens when advertising posters had not been’
delivered. This was identified early in the period, and was immediately
addressed. We are not aware of any significant issues since then.

Two rounds of advertisements of consultation events have been placed in local
press in each borough.

Consultation documents were issued to 190 people and representatives of
organisations and all mental health service areas had documents and summary
leaflets available for patients/clients and visitors.

As noted above, 19 meetings were held with staff in the services affected by the -

proposals. In addition, separate meetings have been and continue to be held for
some groups of staff.

In addition to the public consultation meetings, there have been many borough-
based meetings for many groups as referred to previously e.g.

Service User groups

Carers’ groups

Primary Care Trusts

Professional Executive Committees of PCTs

Overview and Scrutiny Committees

Local Implementation Teams for the National Service Framework/ Mental
Health Partnership Boards.

Voluntary organisations.

Arrangements were made for a group of service users to travel to Norfolk and
Waveny Mental Health Trust to visit the services provided there.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

16 of 18



Page 57

Q. 7.4 The cémmittee felt that some of the language used in the consultation
events made it difficult for people to properly understand the issues.

This is helpful feedback, we have not received this comment before, though we
recognise the issues are complex. We have given feedback to the presenters
regarding the language used and apologise if this was not right on all
occasions.

8. General Points

Q. 8.1. The committee felt that some general points were worthy of further
consideration. These include:-

Q 8.1.i) The lack of clear links with existing commissioning strategies for adults
of working age and older people:

The Trust is uncertain of the basis of this comment as the proposed model is
based on the Comprehensive Commissioning Strategy. The older people’s
Commissioning Strategy was still in the process of development and finalising
at the time that the new model was being considered around the boroughs. It is
recognised, however, that there will be a need to dovetail service changes with .
the recently approved commissioning strategy for older people.

To assist in the cross-referencing of the proposals to the Commissioning
Strategy, page references are noted on presentation slides and a separate
reference paper has been compiled for the Joint Overview and Scrutiny
Committee. (Appendix 1)

Q. 8.1.ii) The proposed Model of Care does not cover all recommendations of
the scrutiny exercise “scrutiny. of hospital discharge services for St Helens
residents with mental health problems”.

A joint health and social service action plan and response to the
recommendations is in process and a report is to be provided to the Overview
and Scrutiny Panel as previously advise by Jan East to Mike Wyatt on 8" June
2006. Changes made consequent to the action plan will carry forward into the
new model. ' '

Q. 8.1.ii). The focus on carers within the proposed Model of Care seems weak
and carers issues do not appear to have been properly addressed.

This was highlighted early in the consultation period and action for carers could
have been made more explicit in the Model of Care. However, the issue has
been discussed at many of the public meetings and carer's needs are implicit in
the model and in how we deliver all our services and use Effective Care Co-
ordination. We have also been meeting with carers’ representatives and carers’
groups in different boroughs.

The Trust is committed to working with all partners to ensure that carers’ issues
are addressed.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06
- 17 of 18

- gl
o AL



Page 58

A list of all the consultation events that have taken place is compiled and being
updated regularly. The most recent update is available as an additional item of
information for the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Q. 8.1.iv) The need for a clear and robust training programme for staff at all
levels to support the proposed changes.

This is well recognised by the Trust, thus an existing Assistant Director is to be
seconded, from the 14™ of August, to the post of Assistant Director Staff
Development. His role will be to focus on and support the development of the
workforce as required to support the model.

The additional staffing for in-patient areas will facilitate the ability to release staff
for training

Q. 8.2. Governance and accountability arrangements — how will the new model
fit with current agreements?

Internal to the Trust, its governance arrangements will continue, subject as now
to external scrutiny for compliance against standards.

Locally in boroughs, these will continue to be agreed and exercised through the
Partnership Agreements. The provision of integrated services has been a
strong feature and benefit of local services and its continuation is an integral
element of service delivery, whatever the model.

Externally, the future commissioning by PCTs will be through detailed Service
Level Agreements rather than block purchasing. This will benefit the Trust and
PCTs in greater clarity of what is funded and what is provided. This will enable
improved governance to be applied.

Q. 8.3. Relationship with West Cheshire PCT - currently Halton provides a
service to residents in Helsby and Frodsham. The committee requires further
details about how this will be managed and financed in the future.

We will only in the future provide services for which the Trust is funded. We will
be happy to provide services if they are funded.

Discussions are ongoing to this effect and we expect this issue to be resolved
as part of the refining of financial allocations through the FT Diagnostic
Process.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

- 185@8
i [



Page 59

|1 eted
€ uonoag ‘gl ebed

‘siol] ||e ye Buipesado saoinuss jje Joy eusiuo Aypqibie pue
sjoe)u00 ‘sAemyjed aleo ‘suoijesyioads Jsnqol pue Jes|o Jo juawdojarag

eua3uD Aiqibilg

Z| esed
€ uonosg ‘gl abed

‘wnnuiuod pue Aydosojiyd jgpow Alsnooal ay)

UIyIM Sjelado [|IM S8J3U80 S0IN0SaY "S92IAI9S AJIUNWILLIOD BAsusyaldwod
Jo uojsinold |iny sawinsse yoiym ‘suonosfoid sisujelyohsd jo 86|00

jeAoy Jus1INo Uo paseq aq pjnoys AJeso| yoea Joy uoisiroid pag ainin4
*sJopIosIp [ejusw Buunpua lo/pue snoLSs YIM SJualo JO Juswabeuew

pUB 81ed paseq-souspine BAloaya BuuaAlap Jo siqeded ‘Ybnolog yoes ul
PaUOISSILULIOD 8 pInoys sasjuad AIsA0o8l pue 801nosal Ujjeay |ejuswl moN

(soyy) sanusd
A1oA020Yy pue 821n0SdY

Isniy SHN

"ooe|d a)e] Jouued syiys oy} Aym suoses!

se pa)o Uayo ale Jnq ‘epuabe uopesiulapowl sy} Jo soe) 8y} Ul Al siojoey
asoy} JO ||V "SIeled 118y} pue SISsn SDIAISS UO sey Ssaul|l [ejuaw Jo aposide
ue yoiym ‘uondnisip ay} asiwixew o} SOAISS }I pue ‘S32Inosal uo uleip
sjeuoipodoldsip & sajnjiysuoo 1 ‘saoiass Jusijedul uo ainssald s|qelsjojul
seoe|d }| "wie} Buo| 0} WnIpaw ay} ur sjqeure)sns jou Ales|o s uoljenyis siyj

‘fouedno20 paq %001 JoAo e Buiuuni sjun jusijedul [eoo] sousy

‘UoISSILIPE 0} SAIJEUIS)jE OU SaWBWOS S| 818y} Jey) 1no juiod usyo play

sy} Ui sisuonoeld ‘asuodsal }si} 8y} USYO 00} SI UOISSILIPE [ejidsoy ‘Joy
yyesH [elusiyl €861 2l ul |didulid B se pauLiysus Sem SAIJeUIS)e SA[OLIsal
1Se9] 8U)] Jey} Joe} oy} ajdsa( ‘uoissiwpe |ejidsoy 0} aAljeuls)je ou sajedipul
Sl SY} SI8UM ‘SSOUBISWINDIID SWAIIXS JO JSoW 8y} ul Jdaoxe ‘jejidsoy

Ul Uey) Jayjel swoy je papiaold s| ‘juswieal} pue poddns jsouwl spisbuole

‘aJeD 9nNoe ey 0s pasiuebloal A||eluswepun) eq 0} pesu S8OIAISS ",

abueys jo uonoaliq

53

Jepog oy} Joj abueyojaies jo s|opolp Jo sjesodold ay3 1o} m_m_mm Bunensnj
s}|npy Jo} ABajes;g BuluoissiWLWwoD Wolj s}oenxy

90°80°01 AUNIOS R MBIAIBAQ JUIO 10) SONSS| oY

SHN diysiaulied sybnoiog g

| Xipuaddy

]



Page 60

[uonoag ‘g abed

Joujsip awoy ajeipawiwl iay} spisino papiaold
S9OIAIOS Ul 9180 BUIAiD0a) SI9SN S0IAI8S YIM JOBJUOoD ulejulew disy
0} 90UBJSISSE YIIM ‘pasu 0} Buiplodoe s1a1ed pue ssijiwe} 0} Jjoddng e
"ajqissod se awoy 0} 9s0[0
Se ‘22109 2JoW SIaY0 YoIym ‘uoisinoid paseq-AjUNILIOD Uo SN0}y o
‘Ajeyes pue Ajejendoidde ajdoad sjgesaujna spoddns yolym ‘eoiMeS Y e
‘s90InI8s s,8]doad Japjo pue abe Bupom usemiaq aied yjesy |ejusw
JO Jojsuel) pue sauij uoljeosewsp pajejal-sbe jJualind 8y} 0} pus Uy e
"S82IAISS Posnoo} A1anooal Jo Yiomisu Aousbe-pinui y e
:eale sy} ssoloe soe|d
ul 89 0} pesu yoiym ‘uopeinbiyuod soines jo se|diould pue sjuswsd “,

uoneinbyuods
a@9o1A19s jo sojdioulld

| uoioeg ‘g abed

‘saolInes s 8|doad Japjo pue abe Bupjiom usamiaq aled yyesy
JelusW JO Jajsuel) pue saul| uoljedsewsp pajejal-abe Juslind sy} o} pus Uy

S$S9008. 92IAI9S
Buneuiulosip abe-uoN:

¢l eled
¢ uoljoag ‘G| ebed

"pesiwixew aq
pINOYS S0IOJ{IOM 818D [BI00S 8y} pue siexiom A1snoosy pue awl) Hoddng
‘SJUB)NSUOD 9SINN SE Yons s8jo) mau jo [enusiod syl "sanued Aianodsl
pue 82inosal Jo Juswdojsaap 8y} ul pasieas s| suolssajold [fe jo |epusjod
(N} @y} Jeyl ainsua pnoys uopeinByuod pue juswdojoAsp SDI0PHOA

Bupjiopp Jo
sAepp MapN pue Bulures)

~ "UOISNjOUl [BIDOS ©INSUS 0} ‘SISIeD JI9Y) PUB S19SN 80IAI8S

JO saoueyo oYl Aeulpio asiwixew o} ‘ss|diounid AloA008l Uo paseq jusuesi)
pue a1e9 Jo |opow e dojaasp o} Jayyeboy ulof pjnoys sediales poddns pue
suepuo ‘Asii4 "sybnoloq Jnoj sy} SSoJok S9OIAISS )jeay [ejusw wiojsuel)

7 i

0} 9oe|d o))} 0} pasu SYIYsS [eJuswepun) oM} sieeh aaly Ixau 8y} JoAD

92JOPJOAN PUB SOHY

90°80°01 AUnNIOS 9 MIIAISAQ JUIOf 10} SBNSS] 9y

| xipuaddy



Page 61

gg abed

[ sanijioe) Juaned-ul uo puewsp 8y} donpal
sjuawdojarsp :u:w jeyy Ao___mmo\swz pue weybujuLilg YHON Ul Se yons)
9ouapIAe sjdwe S| 818U | "SPasU |B00| 199W 0} AUSISAIP JUSIDIYNS JO SBVIAISS

Apunwiwos Jo wnujoads e Buidojonsp spiemoy siseydwa Jo Yiys e aq pinoys
a1y ey} pebpeimoude Ajjesionun si )i siyl jje sudse( "seAl| Aleulplo siasn
ao108s 0} uondnisip sy} Buisiwixew seajeuls)e Ajunwwod jo sdussqe

38U} Ul pasSN-I9A0 ale sadjAISs Jusiied-ul UloIaym saslie 8|40 SNOOIA

v ‘juswjeal) pue Joddns paseq Ajunwiwod jo abuel e jo asuadxa

ay} je uoisiaoad Juaed-ul uo siseydws ue 0} psf sey Yoiym sadiaies

Ul JUSWISSAUL Japun ojuoIyod E_Q-mco_ Aq pspunodwod s} uiajed sIyl,
Aﬂcman_gmn

ao1M8s Jo A1eo] apoo-jsod pue Juswdojanasp oljesouhsolpl sy} 0} Bulialey)

A co;omw ov obed

Adwoid swoy uinjal o} papoddns

ale s|doad Jey) ainsus 0} paIdyo ag pjnoys SaijiAlO. [euoljeslds.
pue ‘Adesoy} ‘Juswiyeai) jo abuel e ‘[eudsoy ui si Aejs Jusijed-ui sy} j| e

“Juswijeal} pue aled Jisy} Ul POAJOAU] Ulewal

PUE JISIA O} Saljilue) JO} [9AB1} JO WNWILIW & YIM Sjgissod se swoy
s,uosled e 0} Jeau se papiaocid aq pjnoys saoIAISS Jusijed-ul SN0y e

yoddns jo 82oinos
urew ay} aq pjnoys ajdoad ||i Aj2INoe 1o} S9OIAISS JuSW)eal] SWOH e

A|[eo0] a|qejiene sadlAISS JaYl0

Jo ebuel sy} ‘40 UoioUN} B S| pue ‘uo spuadep uayo aiow palinbal
uoisiaoid jusiyedul jo Junowe ayj jey) sysebbns souepinb Jusoay e

/seale Aqieau Jayjo ypm pasedwoo uonelndod jo pesy Jad speq Emamac_
oEmEo>ma mSom u,o >_aa3m-‘_m>o aAjejal e aousuadxa sybnoloq unoj ayj ***

asn paq jd-uf uo
¥iomjau fjunwiwod
JO SSOUBAOdYD

JO 92UdpIAT

Alunwwod

0} uojsinoad juaned

-ui wody yuswAojdap
9sinosal jo YIys

juswyeal |
SWOH pue uopnjosay
SISIID JO 8ARBUIB} Y

uoyonpay pag

90°80°01 Aunniog @ MIIAIBAQ julof ._,ou_ sonssj 9y
I xipuaddy

L



"91e0 paseq [e)idsoy 0} aAljeula)je [eal B JSAI[Sp SN swesd) J HYO

-poddns ssusjui A|ybiy apinoid o3 Aoeded sy alinbai osje yjog

“Jasn 921A18s o) jo Bujuoiouny ainyny sy} Buirocsdu jo (eob Atewd sy} yum
“uswsbeuew pue Bupje) jsu o} yoeoidde s|qixs|i & Aq pasiisjoeleyd ale
seoines ylog |jeydsoy ul papiaoid usaq aaey Ajsnolaaid Aew siy] "swoy je
papinoid S| Juswiesl} pue a1ed Jo [9As] sjelidoidde ue a1aym ‘SeoUBISWNDID
pajejaiun Ul Jo ‘SISUO E Ja)je JO 810)aq passAlep oq Aew jusuiess) SWoH

"uolelIolaap Jo wiey

Jaypny pioAe o} asuodsai pidel e salinbal siy| "uosiad s|qessu|nA Ajsnoinaid
e 1o} JusAe snopiezey e Aq Ajusppns paiabbly usyo aie sesu) “buiuonouny
|euosiad Jo |9A8] 8jqe)jdaooe ue 0} sialed Jisy) pue 1asn aJIAISS 8y} al10)sal
pue wiey Jayuny asiwiuiw o} yoddns aaisusjul Buliayo ‘sisuo yjeay [ejus

& e JO sjusuodwod oiioads sy} Uo UMOP Sleaq UORN|0Sal SISUD "92IAIas Y} JO PN

s sjusuodwod OM) 8y} usam}aq uolessewsp poojsiapun Al1es|o e aq 0} spaau jusuwijeal] SWOH i
w Gg abed alay | -abueyd [euoljewlojsuel) 10} SIOALIP A8) 8y} a( [{Im sadiAIes asay | pue uoinN|osay sisu)

ol
94y poddns o3 ylomjau
s99IAlas Ajlunwwiod |’

Slay}o uey} asiom se pabpsimoudioe pajelbajul jo uonessd
9q 0} 9ABY SWOS ‘[espl Si Sjiun Juaijedul SINO. dU} JO BUOU ISIYM e ‘pue sjuUdWUOIIAUS
‘[opow Aienooal ayy poddns Ajiny Jou op Asy| ‘sejousbe juaned-ul pasosduwl
/v obed LUSaM}aq UOIJBUIpIO-02 Yoe| pue ajenbapeul aie sepijioe) Ajunwiwoy) e Joj Juswalinbay

‘sa0Ines asay) Buisn ajdoad sy} jo Bulag-jlem pue neijiw onpnadelsy} sy}
uo joedw) aapebau e sey sjusWUolAUS asay} Jo Ajilenb Jood ay) Ajuaiund
pue Jybiuiano uaddey Jou |Im Sy} ‘Spaq &8sy} JO Jaquinu sy} sonpal

0} syees ABejess siy} ybnoyyly "spiepuels ejqeidesde jesl spun asay)

Ul JuUS1IND 8y} JO BWOS

o

3

90°80°01 Aunniog x® MIIAIBAQ JUIOf 10} Sanss| 19y
|l xijpuaddy




Page 63

¢g abed

"AJaNI|op 82IAI8S pPal-Spoasu uey}

Jayjel aoInosal [euonipel} pabusjjeyd osje sey epusbe uopesiuispow ay |
"spaau 00| Bunos|jal aled Jo wnioads e JOAISP 0} Sjelode||oo pue Jaysboy
11} S80IAI9S MOY JO MBI lbalelis e dojeasp 0} 8lojaiay) Juepoduw

si )| 'SLHIND pPaysijge}sa jo uonouny pue sjol Buinuiuod sy} uoisanb
‘yoeaNNO SAILISSSY SE UoNns ‘Sa0IAIes Jsijeloads mau oy | "s8dlnes yijesy
[ejusu AJunwiwod Joj sebusjieyo Jejnoiped asod ‘uonelsusbal Apunwio
pue uonesiwepow adiuas ‘Aoljod oljgnd Aelodwsjuod Jo slejjid uimy ay |

SIHND | 3

-yoeoidde jusjsisuod e ainsus 0}
S9OIAISS || SSOIOB saloljod UOWWOoD Sey J| Jey} aINsus [IMIsnip 8yl e
‘Anoss Jo sjens| Jaybiy epinocid 0} 8|qe aq pinoys jsnit
SHN ybnolog g sy} ul NDid 8uo }ses| Je ‘sesed yons afeuewi o] e
. ‘aInjonJiselul eay [ejusu AJUNLLLLIOD [BO0] Soueyus Jayuny
0} pasn aq pjnoys pasesjal Asuow 8yl '(/-9002 leak [eoueul)(1HYD)
4O uoisinoid 8y} JO JBSA ISil} SY) UIYIM pajeulwl|s aq pjnoys '10joss ajeand
oy} wolp spaq NOId Buipnjour ‘Ayanoe peq oupelyoAsd spnoe jo eseydind

A)1IN23s JO |9Ad] YIIMm
spaq NOld 03 SS999Y.

90°80°0} AURNJIOS R MBIAIDAQ JUlOf 10} SBNSS] 19y
| xipuaddy



Page 64

¢g abed

‘Buiuueld a1ed pasijenplApul
ybnoJy) uoneupio-09 a1eD aAldayT Aq pajessusb suonejoadxa ay)
198w 0} ajenbepe Jabuoj ou si anuad Aep e s}y 8ZIs 8uo, 8y} ‘g)dwexa 104

S99IA19S Aep
[euoliped} JO uoljessad

99-G9 sebed

‘Buiuued

aleo Auanooas ybnoayy waysAs ay) jo Ayoeded BulUOISSILIWIOD-0IOILU

sy dojonsp ||Im Asy} ssowiaypund ‘||e 10 yyjesy [ejusul poof jo uonowolid
By} pes| pue seRuNLWWod [e00] Yum sdiysuoije(a dojaasp o} paoe|d

1s9q 94 os|e [m sy "siaied o) poddns Jo uoisirold sy} pue ‘uoisnjoul
[e190s pue Alaaooal Buijowold Uo sndoyal [iM swes) asay | "swia|qo.d yyesy
[EJus BuLNpUS pUE SNOLBS UM 89S0y} O} 81ed pue poddns Buiobuo apiroid
o0} swea} Ateunjdiosip-inw paseq Ajjesiydeifoab Joj pasu e 8q 0] 8nuRUOD
1M 218U} JBY} Jes|0 S| )l JOASMOH "S1HIND dHauab jo uoiouny pue sjol ainjny
ay} uonsenb o} seales A[pajgnopun swea} pasijeuoljouny Jo UoJONPoAuUl 8Y L

£9-¢9 ebed

"sioled

1oy seoInles [9)jesed apiroid pinoys swea)} syl ‘uonelBajul |euonesiuebio
INOUJIM JO UM ‘SJED [BIO0S PUE U)|esy SSOIo. Juswabeuew aul| a|buls
pejelbejul ainbail os|e |Im 82IA18S AJUNWILIOY JNJSS800NS / "SISSN SDIAISS
Buipnjoul aA1es ABU} UOIUM ‘SSIIIUNWILIOD 8y} Jo dAljejussaldal 8q pinoys
a0lopiom 8y "sieuoniioeld ||e JO JusUOIAUS Bupiiom pue snooy Aewind
ay} aq pjnoys Asy] "diysiepes| |euabeuewl pue [BJUID UM pajelbajul
Ajjeuoissajoid Ajjny 89 pjnoys swies} pasijeuoljoun; 8ssy ] ‘Aemyjed a1ed
pue poddns J1ay} Buoje spaau s Jasn 8dIAISS B Jo8jal A@rendosdde alow
yolym swiea} Ajunwiwiod jo abuel e dojoAsp 0} SoUBYD Y} SI8Y0 SSIINISS

|euonjouny AjBuis

25

eaIoul Spiemo} s1HND duauab woul Aeme arow ay |

sjuswaalby
diysiauredjuoisiaoad
pajesbajul

JO uonenunuod

diysiepea |eoiul|D

90°80°0} AulNIoS R MBIAISAQ JUIOf* 10) SANSS| .9y
L xipuaddy

oo



Page 65

19-99 ssbed

asneoag ‘obleyosip Ajawi} Upm swiajqoid pue uoljesieydsoy ‘osdejal
0} BURNQLIUOD SE UOIBPOWLLOIDE S|qelns Jo soussge ayj o} juiod
USLO PUE MSIA SIU} 8Jeys siauopioeld pue sueioiul|D “sjuswaiinbal
doy Jiay} Jo suo se uolepowwosoe sreudoidde sjo Ajuanbaly siaied
puUe S19Sh 89IAISS (UOI}EPOWLLIOdd. paspoddns jo wniosds peoiqy e

- :a1e saoInas poddns Ajunwiwod pajelfisiul jo sjuswale Aey noj ay L

GG abed

‘Bale oy} SSOIOB SSOIAISS Y)esy jejusw Jo sous|eAsld sy} uj Isixs o}
sanunuoo Ale)o| apoo-jsod v "ainjipuadxe pue spasu usamjaq diysuoie|s!
ay} ul anJ} Ajjenba si siy| “sjuswieal) [esibojoyohsd jo Aujigejiene

Sy} Ul Se ‘pesu [eoo] pue uoisiroid [eo0] usamiaq diysuolje|al SnoIAgo ou
o Aew aJay} }jnsal e sy ‘siobeuell pue sUeldiUlO [ed0] JO WSeISnUjus pue

JuswIwwios ayy Aq Ajuo uaaup usyo ‘Ajpiezeydey padojonsp sadines ey}

sybnoJoq sso.loe
S9IAISS JO }IoM}dU
Alunwiwod pajesbajul
Jo Aoualsisuod

jo juswdojanraqg

Jueaw sybnoloq Inoy sy} ssoioe uolisiA oibsjesns ajbuls e jo aoussqe sy |

‘diysiouped Jo ssiwouods s}
pue uonuanald yBnoiy} SSEUBAIOSYS JS00 SISy} [eSAal (|IM pue ‘elixe Buiop
uey) Jayes Apualayip sbuiyy op o} yeis alinbal asay} se ydns seAljeniu]

soAljeul Alajes Ajjunwwod ul buibebuy e
$821n0sal pue uoneulojul Buireys
‘s1opinold eo1AIes Jayjo Yiim yoeordde aaijeIoqe||od e Buidojeasq e
sawwelBoid uonowoid yyesy jeyusw BuisiuebiQ e
swinJo} AjunwWiWog uo asussaid jusisisuod e Buiysijqe}sy e
sanuao Aep se yons sayjjioey Jsijeloads
ueyy Joyies ‘sbumes AJUNWIWOD Ul Juswieal) pue aied jo BulisAlleq e
:BuipnoUl SeIIUNWIWOD [e20} Ul Wy} ajelbajul 0} J8pIo Ul SOOIAISS

yeay |elusw [e20] AQ payoune| aq Ued SaAelliUl 9AI0SYS 1509 Jo abuel

90°80°01 AUNIOS 9 MIIAISAQ JUIO[ 10} SBNSS] 9y
_ L xipuaddy

()
LW



Page 66

"510}083 Juapuadapu| 8y} pue a1ed [elo0s ‘Ujjesy ssoloe

‘SOLWBYDS UOIEPOWILLIOdOE pue sadlues Aep ul yels Hoddns oy
sjeudosdde osje s| swweibold siy | "swes) pasijeuoioun) ayj JO YoM
oy} poddns pue juswajddns [[Im Yyoiym ‘uoisnjous jejoos pue Aisnodsi
Jo uoniowoid ayy ui s|pjs mau dojeasp o} Ajunpoddo ay} yels siayo
awwesBboud siy] ‘sesinosal Buisixe dojaasp o} Ajunpoddo uepodul
ue ypm Awouoos yjeay |eoso] sy} sjuasald sioxiom Hel s ojul

yels pajeliye Ajjeuoissajoid-uou dojsasp 0} SAjjeRiuUl JUsdal S UjesH
Jo Juswyedaq 8y swes] (Yels) Alsnoosy pue swl] ‘Hoddng
-sBunjeg peseq Ajunwiwoy pue ase) Arewld "6 suoijeoo
9](ISS900E 8I0W U] S}elio) OAIJ04S }S00 210W Ul palsAljep 8q pinod
saidesay} |eoibojoydAsd jualino Moy JapISUo JSNW SISUOISSILIWOY
‘wiey) peeu Asy} uaym pue aisym ‘saidesay} s|qejiene

Jo yoey ay 0} juiod Ajjusnbaly siesn eo1AIeS (saldelay) 8|qissaddy
‘saoInIes Ag pebebus ale ‘sdnoib oluys Auoulw se

yons ‘sdnoib papnjoxa Ajjuaiind yoiym o} Jusixa sy} aq [lim aaleniul
SIU} JO SS800NS 8} JO SINSESW SUQ "SSNUBA paseq Ajunwiwod
Buisiewbns-uou ul papiaoid Ajbuisesioul ale seolnles se Aeme Jjaw
Il sajuso Aep eAey 0} Juswalinbas ay) swiy JOAQ “saAleRUl Julo]
pue se0Inosal Jo asn ay} Yybnoiy} ssoinies Ajunwiwod weasijsuiew

Jo Ayoedeo ayj Buiiojdxs se |jam se ‘Apuasayip sbuly) Buiop

pue sBuiyl mau Buiop aAJOAUL [IM SIU| “UoleUIPIO-0D a1ed ybnoiy)
pejelpallU 8ie Yolym s1asn 9o1uss Jo sdnolb pue sjenpiaipul Jo spasu
3y} 0} S|qIX3J} 810W YONW SW0ISq 0} PasuU S$80IAI8S B00T “Buluten
pue uopeonpa ‘uawAiojdwa uo snooj e yum sbuipes [euonnyjsul
uey) Joyrel AUNWWOoD Ul palanljep sediaes Aep pasiuiapoy

euw

159 8Je Spasu 1Iay} alaym Jayjel ‘AoueoeA e st aley) alaym paoe|d
JOU Sl SI9SN S2IAI8S Jey) OS d|qejleAe 8 pjnoys suoijdo Jo wnijoads
e ‘siosn ao1nes Jsbuolle spaau UoljepowLlosde Jo AJISISAIP 8y} JO

' 90°80°01 Aunnuiog @ MIIAIBAQ JUlOf 10}

sonss| 19y
|l Xipuaddy

(o]




Page 67

9 abed

UO SUOSS8| USY} 'PapnjoxXa Jo pajeusi|e Juejonjal Jsow sy} 8ie oym siasn
aolues asoy) BuiBebua Ui [nyssaoons ale swies) asal} § ‘[essush ul swoajlsAs
[eoo] 1o} Juabe abueyo jueoyiubis e aq o} [eusjod sy} sey QY Ssnedaq
yuepodw st iYL "SLHIND POPEOHSAO JO Hiom sy} Juswalddns o} swes |

OV osn o0} uoijejdws} e aq Aew aiau} ataym Apenoiped ‘paniasaid si [opow
ay} Jo Aubajul oy} Jey} S8OIAISS JO UoewlojSuUERL} B} 10} Juepodul AjleA

s1 ]| ‘JoASMO "SWes] YoeannQO sApassy bBuionpodjul o} paje|al sjeble}
Buiaaiyoe uj sybnoiog Inoy 8y} Inoybnoly} spew ussq sey ssaibolid pooo)

SOOIAIOS
yoeaanQ aARIassy

y9 obed

1sniy diysisuped sybnolog G ayj ui juiod [e)jusd e wolj

pebeuew pue pspoddns ag pinoYs Sa2IAI8S 8SaU} '‘90UBUISA0D 82IM8S

0} Ajiwiouod pue ‘eouewiopiod Jo ASUsiSISUOD 8INSUS O} JBpIo U| "8dIAISS
$S200Y JO JUIod 9|bulg By} Ui alre) Alewld yum soepsiul sy} je Jayyebol
Jejs asay) a}eo0] 0} sjeudoidde aq Aew ) ‘suonuantaul Ales jo se|diound
sy} Jo diysIouMo sulejel WalsAs ajoym sy} Jey] ainsue pue ‘esipadxs siy}
ssauley 0} Jopio U] "S1HIND jenplalpul ul pakojdep aie syejs asay} Ajuaiind

SOHY Ul pajis 9q 0}
pasodoud yjoq — ad1Al8S
92IAPY pue SS3829Y YIM

patinbai diysuoiyejal
9S0}2 pue juawasueyua
991IAI9G SISOyoAsd

ul uonuaAiajuj Ajeg

-Juewissasse Apaads a)ejljioe) pue SedIAISS YIIM JOBJUOD |eljiul Yyouue

o} ‘diysiapes) |eojul|o apnjoul pue [euoissajold-jinw aq pjnoys swes) 8say ]
‘g198Nh 891AI9S 10§ soue)sisse ajendoidde spiemoy Bunsodubis aaoays

U] }SISSE 0] $90IN0SaJ pue sadIASSs Jnode sbpsmouy JO Yjleam e ajejnwuindoe
ueo pue ‘Buideey sjeb pue Juswssasse u| asipadxs apirold Aay

"2]e9d 1awWolsnd

uo siseydwa Aneay e aoe|d ai10j01ay} ||IM pUB UOIOUN) [ELIOpESSEqUIE

ue wiopad [im )l ‘seoinss sijeloads ojul Aemeleb ey} aq [IIM YdS YL
*$801USS Jsijeloads ojul }Jom Jo moyy ay} ajejnbal osie [[Im

-uoouny Bunsod-ubis pue JUSWISSISSE UE SE ||oM Se Swies) ale) Alewlid 0}
voddns apinoad [jIm so1nss 8y} jo ped siy] “gels Aemejes) pue ased Aewid
ayenpels) Buisn ‘aie) Arewid ym soepajul 8y} je pajedo g pinoys
SOOIAISS Y)jesy [ejusul sijeioads 0} sjelajal ||e 1o} sseooe Jo julod ajbuls v

R

diysiapea [eolul|d

(dys — sso929Y jo
sjuiod 9|bulg) sodInlag
@2IAPY pUE SS90y

- 90°80°0} AunNISS @ M3IAIBAQ JUIO[ 10} SANss| 19y
L xipuaddy




Page 68

ol

62

uoisinoid

pue uoneinbiuod Wwes) Jsijeroads 10} apiroid pinoo snij yubnoiog-ued e jey}
9|e0Ss JO SSIWOU0Da aY} WoJj uoisirosd 8oIA18S JUSLIND Ul pas)[eal si Jjausq
ON ‘S1HWD Alenoited ‘sediaes AJunwiiod Jo UoNESILISPOLW J0) JOAS)]

B uky) Jayjel $8diAles AJUnLUWOoD 0} UO }oq B SE ]SIXa SaoIAles QY Ajuaiing

"wia)sAs sjoym ay} jo uswdojonsp

ay} ayenwis [im siy -Apualayip sbuiyy Bulop is|iym sysi sbeuew

0} pasedald s )1 JI JuswWse 90IAISS SAljeUIBEWI pUR SAIjEaIO B 8] UED

OV ‘@Joulsypn "99IAISs Jo seale Jayjo Ag paules] ag ued auop si siyl moy

' 90°80°0} AUIINIOG @ MBIAISAQ JUIO[ 10} SANSS| 0y
| xipuaddy



Page 69 APPENDIX 3

JOINT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

KEY ISSUES FOR MEETING WITH PCT’s 24™ AUGUST 2006

1. IMPACT ON SERVICE USERS AND CARERS

Are the PCT'’s satisfied that the plans are based upon the needs and wishes
of service users and carer ?

All 4 boroughs have ratified the 4 Boroughs Commissioning Strategy, which
contained a significant body of needs analysis and intelligence in relation to
feedback from service users and carers. In broad terms this information
translated into a possible direction of travel, which included Resource and
Recovery Centres to transform in-patient environments.

Individual boroughs have also demonstrated a range of engagements both
on-going and specific to inform service planning and redesign. Therefore, a
continuous process is operating to ensure service users and carers are
involved in the construction of local services. This would complement
systems and processes operating within other organisations.

At issue for service users and carers, as for the key partner organisations to
SBPT is the level of detail that is available and when information was made
available. ' ‘

Warrington’s Mental Health Partnership Board convened an extraordinary
meeting to receive a “Change for the Better” presentation. There were many
concerns raised by service users and carers alike which the 5 Boroughs have
endeavoured to consider.



Page 70

2. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

2.1. Canthe PCT’s assure members that the financial implications of the
proposed model of care are robust ?

The PCT’s have available financial information as contained with DRAFT
reports leading up to the final version of Models of Care 12B and financial
reports provided by 5BPT at subsequent Borough specific meetings. The
PCT's await further detail and clarifications from 5BPT’s in relation to the

movements of funds from current to proposed service configurations.

It is though recognised that a disproportionate position will operate in relation
to the savings sought against each borough.

HEADLINE COMMENT
HALTON
The following is apparent within the proposed changes presented by 5BPT.

— The level of planned beds (from 69 to 38) could increase the use of Out of
Borough placements at cost to the PCT.

— The removal of the alcohol detoxification bed will potentially impact upon
costs (recognition exists that 5BPT assert that such a facility was never
funded and was based upon bed availability).

~ The transfer of a substantial number of patients out of Specialist mental
health service i.e. CMHT’s down from 2912 (contracts) to 350 (cases) and
the planned closure of day units (prescribing activity) will have a significant
impact for primary care and there is at this stage no planned investments
into Primary Care Mental Health capability and capacity.

— The proposed model does not include Psychiatric Intensive Care Provision
(PICU) and this is a parallel Business Case at a potential cost to the PCT
of £100K (shared bed with St. Helens).

— The proposed model has been costed for Halton without Early Intervention
Service (EIS) which is a component of Resource and Recovery and a
national requirement. 5BPT have identified additional cost of £186K to
delivery EIS.

- The overall financial context and achieving financial balance will lead to

the highest disinvestments within Halton i.e. £1,899,123 down from
£5,811,958 to £3,975,723.

-84




Page 71

ST. HELENS

Further discussions and subsequent information afforded by 5BPT would
indicate either a small increase in investment (+£404K) or a small decrease
(-£250K). The lack of clarify is due to accounting practices within 5BPT and
the continued apportionment of full service costs to either St. Helens or
Knowsley for shared services i.e. In-Patient environments, In-patient
Rehabilitation Services (now closed) and Psychological Therapy Services.

— As with Halton the planned reduction in CMHT’s activity from 1280 to 525
will have an impact upon primary care and again at this stage no additional
investment has been identified to increase capability and capacity within
Primary Care Mental Health Services.

— RRC based at Peasley Cross will require substantial capital funding and
whilst an indication of securement has been given by 5BPT, this needs to
be formalised.

— As already indicated, in relation to Halton, the shared PICU cost to St.
Helens would be £100K.

WARRINGTON

The decrease in in-patient beds from 60 to 32 could increase the need for out
of area placements, at extra cost to the PCT, if the calculations are not
accurate. '

The impact the model may have on Primary Mental Health Care Services may
be significant. At this point, there is no plan for investment into this area. |

As indicated in St. Helens and Halton, there is a separate funding request
from 5BPT to fund a PICU bed at a cost of £200k to the PCT.

The PCT is awaiting confirmation of understanding that the non-recurrent
financial support of £250K is to cover double running-costs, project
management and dissolution costs.

In conclusion it is evident that further detailed financial work is required to
inform understanding and decision making.

2.2. Are the PCT’s in a position to provide detailed costings to implement
and support the strategy including transitional costs where relevant ?

The PCT's are not able to provide detailed costings to implement and support
the proposed changes, as these are yet to be agreed and would be the
subject of further work. The PCT’s have indicated that they would make
available funds to assist with transitional work. The PCT'’s have identified

L




Page 72

£0.5M additional ONE OFF funds to assist with transition and the
establishment of a Project Team.

2.3. Interms of the 5BPT recovery plan, why are the savings being
financed solely from Adult Mental Health and only 4 of the relevant
Boroughs ?

This question may require further clarification from 5 Boroughs Partnership
NHS Trust, but the PCT’s would consider that this is partly presentational. In
that the 5BPT have parcelled together the financial pressures for 2006 / 2007
which are a combination of over-trading and Cost Releasing Efficiency
Savings (CRES). Together this amounts to a projected over commitment of
£7M. :

The 5BPT Recovery Plan seeks to address this by :
- Reducing back office costs by £1M, applicable to all 5 Boroughs.

— Achieve CRES to the tune of £2.6M, equally applicable to all
boroughs.

— Generate the balance through Models of Care, which is in line with
the recently agreed 4 Boroughs Commissioning Strategy.

Adult Mental Health Services is the core business of 5 Boroughs Partnership
NHS Trust and is considered the area requiring further modernisation and
redesign. As indicated “back office” costs and CRES will be applied across all
services and boroughs.

2.4. Does the recovery plan have any implications for CAMHS or Older
Peoples Mental Health Services. ? '

The proposed changes will not directly impact upon contributions from PCT'’s
to 5BPT in relation to the Commissioning of Child and Adolescent Mental
Health Services. Clearly 5BPT may apportion back-office costs and CRES to
this service area, but they have indicated no reduction of investment.

With regard to Older Adults, the model does incorporate older adults with
functional mental health needs. 5BPT have indicated that such needs will be
met within Resource and Recovery Centres, that access to Enhanced Day
Programmes and Crisis Resolution / Home Treatment will be available.

1
(@]




Page 73

However, the PCT’s have received no information in relation to the capacity
assumptions made to enable this change to be implemented.

There are concerns that the RCP recommendations for the number of beds,
which has been set at the lower end for adults, does not include consideration
of old age. This in the light of an ageing population does generate real
concerns. :

Equally discussions have identified a clear difference allied to inclusion of
Older Adults within Resource and Recovery Centres and the appropriateness
of this. '

It should be noted that changes and redesign are ongoing in older persons
mental health services which need to be dovetailed at implementation.

Proposed changes will impact upon Older Adults. Such changes have been
planned more in line with the Adult Mental Health 4 Boroughs Commissioning
Strategy as opposed to the Older Adults Strategy. The dovetailing of these
two positions requires further work.

2.5. The models of care aims to deliver cost reductions of £7M:;
approximately £4.4M from staffing and associated costs, with a further £2.5M
from general efficiency savings. Is this a sustainable solution ?

As explained in 2.1 to 2.4., the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust have
parcelled together cost reductions from Models of Care, back-office cost
savings and CRES to achieve the overall position of £7M. This is within the
context that whilst acknowledging the underlying financial problem, 5BPT did
achieve a balanced financial position at year end 05 / 06.

Given the available information provided, it is difficult to judge sustainability
without further work. Important will be transitional planning, agreed timelines
for implementation and the actual management and implementation of the
change,

2.6. In a presentation, the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust stated that the
proposed model would work, providing there was no disinvestments from the
PCT's. Can you confirm that this is the case? Can the PCT’s guarantee that
they are able to sustain this level of investment in future years ?

The PCT’s are not planning to remove investments from 5BPT as a
consequence of the proposed new Models of Care.

Warrington PCT is assured by the 5BPT that post implementation, it will be

investing at a lower level than it is now. There are current redesign projects
and proposals which are currently underway. These will need to be

B ¥



Page 74

completed and the cost implications considered separately to the Model of
Care.

However, PCT'’s retain the right as commissioners to explore whether
services can and should be provided by another provider. For example the
proposed Access and Advice Centre does not have to be located within
specialist mental health services and this could sit in Primary Care. This
would involve either a partnership with 5BPT to deploy staff or staff being
employed by the PCT's.

The proposed service changes will not lead to PCT’s disinvesting in mental
health services. To the contrary PCT’s will maintain the current levels of
investment to enable 5BPT to work differently and achieve greater efficiency
and effectiveness allied to current investments. 5BPT are seeking to
reconcile activity to the current investment levels. This explains the dual
objectives of service improvements and financial balance.

As with all statutory organisations, the PCT's are not able to guarantee
investments at a particular level for always. However confidence exists that
PCT investments into mental health services will rise to both keep pace with
pay and prices, but also afford service enhancements. The question will be
the timeframe and level of growth.

2.7. Inthe 5BPT presentation it was identified that overall investments by
PCT's in mental health services was significantly below the regional and
national average. Will the PCT’s not only sustain current investments but look
to increase, if to a reasonable average, so that community services are not
put at risk because of bed closures ?

The PCT's accept the below average spend per head of population on mental
health services that has built up over many years and that will take time to
address. However PCT'’s are firstly seeking to ensure that current
investments are deployed efficiently and effectively to progress positive
outcomes for service users and carers. Equally that the configuration of
services across the whole system is safe, sound and supportive. PCT’s have
invested within mental health services and will continue to do so.

It is acknowledged that Warrington PCT invest at a higher rate (statistics /
evidence). To this effect, the PCT would be looking to disinvest to enable
investment elsewhere.

The PCT's accept that in-patient services can only be reduced with
corresponding enhancements to community service infrastructures. To-date a
shift has been taking place, as required by the Department of Health, away
from in-patient services to supporting individuals at home and within
community locations. This explains the development of Assertive Outreach,




Page 75

Crisis Resolution / Home Treatment and Early Intervention Services, together
with Gateway and Graduate Workers to support primary care.

The Resource and Recovery Centre approach is seeking to re-balance
existing resources to promote the shift away from a reliance upon in-patient
services.

3.

BED REDUCTIONS

3.1. Are the PCT’ satisfied that the actual and proposed reduction in in-
patient beds is realistic and sustainable ?

The PCT's would make the following overarching comments in relation to the
planned, in-patient bed reductions within each borough, as this is differentially
applied. The following arises :

The reduction of in-patient bed environments is in line with national policy
and a target of 30%. This is directly related to the establishment of Crisis
Resolution / Home Treatment Services and the switching of resources
away from in-patient services towards community. This position is further
supported by Early Intervention Services, which will identify and intervene
to prevent undetected psychosis and Assertive Outreach Services which
will work intensively with those who are difficult to engage and were
previously characterised by frequent admissions to hospital.

SBPT are not though seeking to adhere to the national position but
seeking to achieve greater in-patient reductions, in line with the minimum
recommended population figures identified by the Royal College of
Psychiatrists.

The proposed in-patient bed reductions is further complicated by the
inclusion by 5BPT of current in-patient beds for Older Adults with
functional mental health needs. At present there are no recommended
bed numbers per population for Older Adults with such needs. The Royal
College of Psychiatrists are currently working to provide advice in relation
to this matter.

SBPT have therefore used the Royal College of Psychiatrists minimum
figure for Adults, but in-patient provision within each borough will respond
to both Adult and Older Adult needs.

In-patient bed reductions can only be achieved, in a safe, sound and
supportive manner, if a comprehensive, complementary and integrated
community infrastructure exists across the whole spectrum of services and
service providers. « This is therefore central to any proposed
reconfigurations of services. In essence the balancing of resources to
assure unintended impacts do not occur elsewhere.

en



Page 76

— The consideration of both Adults and Older Adults within the same ward
environments, even with the proposed high staff to patient ratio’s will
present challenges. This has been the subject of further discussion and
the importance of age appropriateness in service terms. For St. Helens,
the proposed move to Peasley Cross will continue current practice of
mixed environments, for Halton and Warrington the proposed change will
move from separate environments to mixed.

HALTON

The context of Halton Borough is such that Crisis Resolution / Home
Treatment Services have only recently been operationalised and that Early
Intervention Services still are not provided. The PCT accepts as
commissioners responsibility for this.

As indicated what is proposed by 5BPT is greater than the national 30%
target. SBPT will seek to reduce in-patient beds from 60 to 38 by the closure
of two wards, ONE for Adults (which would achieve the 30% i.e. 17 adult
beds) and ONE for Older Adults with functional mental health needs, an
additional 14 beds.

At issue with this approach is the Intention to exceed the national target,
without the proposals assuring community infrastructures (i.e. EIS not costed
in) and to add older adult in-patient facility into the reduction. In essence the
proposed Resource and Recovery Centre for Halton will operate at 38 in-
patient beds for both adults and older adults.

WARRINGTON

As for Halton, what is being proposed by 5BPT is in excess of the 30% target.
The proposals for the reduction in in-patient beds is from 60 to 32, with the
complete closure of the older persons functional iliness ward. The PCT have
concerns about the number of beds, the lack of robust community
infrastructure and the ability to manage the two client groups safely in the
same environment.

The proposed reconfiguration of in-patient services, in the absence of a
comprehensive community infrastructure, will involve significant risks to PCT’s
and partners. Such a position is further compounded by the proposed
timeframe for change i.e. Halton will be the first borough to implement the
Resource and Recovery Centre Models.



Page 77

3.2. Given that bed occupancy is currently in excess of 100%, are the PCT’s
confident in the Trusts ability to quickly achieve up to 50% bed reductions,
given that there is no sign that the new NHS Teams which are now largely in
place, have had any impact on bed usage by the Trust so far ?

This question reflects both the paucity and reliability of information provided
by SBBT in that it was the case, and could still be applicable in certain
boroughs, that with the existing in-patient numbers, occupancy levels have
exceeded over 100%. This is though equally related to the introduction or
otherwise of the new services. PCT’s acknowledge that Assertive Outreach,
Crisis Resolution / Home Treatment and Early Intervention Services are either
consolidated, still developing or not in place. As such the proposed changes
will achieve consistency of establishments for all boroughs.

Consequently boroughs continue to operate differentially and this correlates to
varying levels of in-patient occupancy.

We therefore require from 5BPT’s actual performance in relation to in-patient
occupancy levels and projected trends. National evidence would support the
Crisis Resolution / Home Treatment target of 30% reduction in in-patient
services.

As indicated earlier the complicating factor remains that 5BPT have imported
Older Adults in-patient facilities into over bed reductions. This explains the
proposed position within Halton and whether the number suggested is
sustainable i.e. the national CRT / HT position is for Adults only.

4. COMMISSIONING STRATEGY

4.1. Are the PCT’s satisfied with the proposed model of care and does it fit
with the relevant commissioning strategies ?

The proposed reconfiguration of services provided by the 5BPT is focussed
upon ADULTS of WORKING AGE and OLDER ADULTS with functional
mental health needs. :

The proposed model does not therefore address other service areas provided
by the 5BPT, notably :

— Children and Young People (CAMHS)

- Older Adults with organic Mental Health needs.

o




Page 78

— Adults with Learning Disabilities

— Substance Misuse Services

The model is evidence based and modelled upon service changes within
NORFOLK and WAVENEY.

(Warrington PCT has some concerns that this is the only model that the 5
Borough Partnership appear to have considered. It has only been in place for
8 months so has it been fully evaluated ? The model took 18 months to
implement, much longer than what the 5 Boroughs are anticipating.)

Early indications within this service indicates :
— Reduced in-patient length of stay
— Decreasing emergency admissions

— Positive staff commitment.

Such a position is balanced by operational change less than 12 months and
emerging feedback from primary care of increasing referral rates. It is
planned for a team of officers to visit representatives within NORFOLK and
WAVENEY.

The concept of a RESOURCE and RECOVERY CENTRE, supported by
complementary community services does therefore provide a sound platform
to modernise mental health services. The key though remains transition and
implementation recognising that “the devil is in the detail”.

With regard to the recently agreed 4 Boroughs Commissioning Strategies
(Adults of Working Age, Older Aged Adults and CAMHS) a direction of travel
towards New Models of Care was indicated. However, this was within a
whole systems context and a tiered approach to mental health services.

It is the case that 5BPT are seeking to work differently without fully
considering the implications for the whole systems of support and service
provision. The PCT's would therefore endorse in principle but seek efficient
and effective transition planning to assure implementation.

4.2. Are the PCT's satisfied that the proposed model is clinically robust ?

The model as proposed by the 5BPT is considered to be clinically robust. In
that it is seeking to comply with the National Policy Implementation Guide for
the Complementary specialisms i.e. CRT / HT , AOT and EIS, it is based upon
evidence in practice elsewhere i.e. NORFOLK and WAVENEY Mental Health

- 72




Page 79

Trust and will progress the standards recommended by the National Institute
for Excellence (NICE). Equally the reconfiguration of in-patient services will
comply with Safety First and Safer Services in the levels of patient to staff
ratio’s, fit for purpose physical environments and workforce development to
embrace the proposed service models.

The PCT would seek advice from the specialist provider “as the expert” in
relation to overall clinical governance.

The Warrington PCT Board have requested evidence of the clinical
governance impact assessment to ensure patient safety, risk management
and business continuity.

4.3. How does the proposed model of Care, and the recovery plan, relate to
emerging developments in practice based commissioning ?

It is at this stage too early to give a definitive position in relation to the
emerging Practice Based Commissioning Consortia within each of the
Boroughs. Presentations by 5BPT's to the Professional Executive
Committees and Primary Care Trust Boards has identified a need for further
engagement with Primary Care.

Primary Care is supportive of the move from in-patient provision to enhanced
community infrastructures. This change would be in line with the imperatives
for Practice Based Commissioning to further develop primary care capability
and capacity.

As indicated already, such a position recognises a tiered approach to service
provision and advances STANDARDS TWO and THREE of the National
Service Framework i.e. Primary Care and Access.

All of the above though is set within a financial context of constrained
resources across health economies.

5. CONSULTATION PROCESS

5.1. The PCT’s believe that there has'been effective consultation with staff
working in the 5 Boroughs Trust and allied professionals, for example GP’s ?

With the progress of the formal consultation and direct meetings held within
the specific boroughs, 5BPT have provided reassurance that staff
consultations have been undertaken. This is a continuous process and both




Page 80

internal and publically held meetings have afforded staff consultation. The
5BPT have also actively engaged with Unions and professional bodies.

Presentations to the Professional Executive Committees of PCT's and PCT
Boards has identified a need for engagement with G.P’s and Primary Care.
Whilst supportive of the shift away from in-patient services, further discussion
is required given the movement of patients.

5.2. Do the PCT’s have confidence in the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust
to deliver the proposals as described safely and in full and that appropriate
consultation with all stakeholders will have been undertaken ?

The PCT'’s are at this stage not able to reach conclusions in relation to the
delivery of the proposals to change services. This reflects the on-going
nature of the consultation process, a developing body of information and a
focus, now acknowledged by 5BPT, that agreement in principle is the first
stage of the proposed change programme. As such engagement with 5BPT
is building and more information has been provided to inform decision making
as to the appropriateness of the model.

However, the PCT's are clear that if agreed in principle, critical to the change
programme would be transitional planning, involving all partners and
stakeholders and a robust programme of implementation, that is realistic and
achievable within appropriate timelines. A measured approach, incremental
in nature, is required to assure services are safe.

The PCT’s do accept that the proposed change programme, within a context
of financial imbalance, will challenge the capability and capacity of the
organisation.

SBPT are endeavouring to learn fro the consultations and respond to partners
enquiries in a meaningful manner. The proposals are significant and will
require organisational leadership, workforce developments, strong
communication processes and capacity to project manage the change
programme. To-date 5 Boroughs have no experience of change within
services on the proposed scale.

The PCT’s are endeavouring to work with 5BPT and partners to ensure that
the proposed changes, if agreed, are implemented in a robust manner.




Page 81

6. ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

6.1. Who is responsible for defining eligibility criteria for Mental Health
Services in the boroughs.

A combination of factors, interdependent in nature apply in relation to service
accessibility and eligibility. A different position operates in part for health and
social care organisations, but recognises the need for organisations to
manage demand for services, within finite resources. In broad terms the
statutory bodies are responsible for demand management and the use of
eligibility criteria.

— For health eligibility is a clinical activity and access to services will reflect
resources deployed. Health will manage demand through waiting lists.

— In the case of Local Authorities Fair Access to Care Services (FACS) is
applied.

— Integrated services will seek to weld these two positions to discharge the
respective responsibilities and duties of each organisation within available
resources.

The key is patient appropriate care pathways affording progression of an
individuals needs and circumstances.

6.2. The PCT have any analysis of how the tightening of eligibility criteria will
impact on the range of community health services including G.P’s. Are the
PCT’s intending to allocate additional resources to G.P’s and other
community services to cover any gap in services currently provided by 5BPT?

The PCT’s are engaged with Local Authority Commissioners and Providers to
complete Whole Systems Impact Assessments. Such Assessments will seek
to identify the potential impacts given the planned reduction to in-patient
services and changes to community services currently provided by 5BPT.
Such a position recognises that services other than those provided by 5BPT
are constrained and in some cases under-developed. As a consequence the
proposed movement of people away from specialist mental health services
will create pressures elsewhere within the local health and social care
systems.

As already indicated at this stage, the PCT’s have identified no additional

investments to absorb the potential implications flowing from the proposed
New Models of Care.

79




Page 82

7. IMPACT ON SOCIAL CARE SERVICES

7.1 Are the PCT's satisfied that the Trusts claim that there will be little or no
impact on social care services and costs following bed closures is correct ?

The PCT’s are not able to endorse such a position because the partners are
still seeking to scope whole systems impacts allied to the proposed change.
The new Models of Care has been progressed largely in isolation and is
focused upon 5BPT working differently. There is therefore little ewdence to
suggest that 5BPT have considered other implications.

The PCT'’s are therefore not able to confirm the assertion by 5PT that there
will be no cost consequences to partners. On the contrary the outcome is
likely to be additional costs for both the PCT’s and Local Authority partners.
The New Models of Care will not release resources for reinvestment.
Additionality will be achieved, if at all, through a rebalancing of services.

7.2. Do the PCT's consider that additional pump-priming monies over an
extended period are needed to fund additional community health and social
care services, so that closures can be done safely ?

As already indicated, the PCT’s recognise that in-patient services can only be
reduced safely with corresponding enhancements to community services.
The 5BPT are indicating that proposed service model will provide
complementary community services to sustain the proposed levels of in-
patient services.

For St. Helens, as now presented, this has been achieved and 5BPT will only
seek to reduce the RRC by one additional bed. In contrast within Halton, the
PCT is not assured that the planned level of RRV in-patient service is
sustainable. This is because the proposal, as presented will not deliver Early
Intervention Services and involves the loss of ONE Older Adult Ward for those
with functional mental health needs. Equally partners have reported that the
wider community service infrastructure is constrained.

WARRINGTON
Warrington PCT will only be pump-priming, on a non-recurrent basis, £250K,
to facilitate the transition of services — project management, double-running

costs and dissolution costs.

Again, there are concerns about the range and robustness of community
services.

76




Page 83

Therefore a mixed picture prevails across the three boroughs requiring further
discussions before a resolution of the way forward can be achieved.

7.3. Given that Mental Health Services are provided on a very integrated
basis between the Trust and the LA’s and are closely interdependent, are the
PCT's satisfied with the low level of recognition by the Trust within its process
of Consultation and its published document as to the importance of Local
Authority Social Care Services is achieving bed reductions, social inclusion
and recovery ?

This is, in many ways, the most fundamental of all the questions, in raising the
nature of current relationships and whether partnership is real. It is the case,
that despite formal and informal partnerships to assure integration, co-location
and professionals working together, that the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS
Trust is a health organisation.

It is therefore difficult to evidence proactivity allied to social inclusion,
recovery or the social model of mental health. This remains a challenge for
5BPT.

Such a position was evidenced in the earlier drafts of Models of Care, which
reconfigured and provided services with health only establishments. The
absence of social care was apparent but reflects both the core Service Level
Agreements i.e., PCT’s and the original remit from PCT Chief Executives
allied to the Department of Health policy to achieve financial balance.

It could therefore be considered that in the current integrated service
situations, that Local Authority Social Care establishments will be additional to
the proposed Models of Service as presented by 5BPT. Again this matter
requires further discussion.

8. TIMESCALES

In the PCT'’s views, are the revised timescales for the lmplementatlon of the
proposals realistic and achievable ?

Given the scope of the proposed changes, and that partner organisations
were not include in the pre-planning, then the statutory 12 weeks consultation
period has generated undue haste. The danger exists that the condensed
period of consultation will not enable a thorough exploration, given a relatively
low starting point of available information.

77




Page 84

This explains the 5BPT decision to extend for statutory partners the
consultation period.

The reality now is such that there is a growing sense of mistrust on the part of
partners. The timing and length of consultation is set against the financial
context within which 5BPT is operating.

The PCT's are of the view that the concept and model proposed is
appropriate and a sound basis for modernisation of services.

However, the scale of the proposed changes will require robust transitional
planning and rigorous project management to enable implementation. The
PCT's would therefore require evidence of joint impact assessments and
transitional plans to inform decision-making before any service changes were
implemented.

The original proposals were not realistic or achievable and it is noted that
SBPT will now reschedule the original plans to at least the commencement of
financial year 07 / 08.

9. GENERAL

Are the PCT's satisfied with the out of hours arrangements proposed in the
reports ?

The information as provided was confusing in relation to Resource and
Recovery Centres and availability Monday to Friday 9.00 a.m. — 5.00 p.m.
SBPT have clarified that this is in relation to enhanced day therapies.

The Crisis Resolution / Home Treatment Team and in-patient services will
operate on a 24 / 7 basis to provide appropriate responses to people in acute,
emergency or crisis situations.

10. ASHTON, LEIGH AND WIGAN

Can the PCT’s explain the position relating to Ashton, Leigh and Wigan. In
particular the panel would like to know why Ashton, Leigh and Wigan are
being excluded from the consultation when our understanding is that it still
intends to utilise higher tier services from 5BPT. The Panel would also like
clear understanding of what will happen to St. Helens residents who utilise
Wigan Services, some of whom are registered with G.P’s in Ashton, Leigh or
Wigan ?

Ashton, Leigh and Wigan are not subject to the proposed New Models of Care
and therefore the Consultation process, as they have commissioned a
separate review of all mental health services. Ashton, Leigh and Wigan will

78




Page 85

explore a range of service configurations identified through this process to
determine the future providers of mental health services. Ashton, Leigh and
Wigan continue to commission services from 5BPT pending the conclusion of
the options appraisal. ,

Equally Ashton, Leigh and Wigan were performance managed by Greater

Manchester Strategic Health Authority whereas the other 4 Boroughs relate to
Cheshire and Merseyside Strategic Health Authority.

11.  ST. HELENS, HALTON AND WARRINGTON PCT SPECIFIC

11.1 |Is the PCT satisfied that the actual and proposed reduction in in-patient
beds in St. Helens is realistic and sustainable ?

ST. HELENS

Discussions with 5BPT has now clarified the current in-patient position. 5BPT
have confirmed that with the additional investments provided by the PCT
(£1.4M over three years), Crisis Resolution / Home Treatment, Assertive
Outreach and Early Intervention Services are operational. This has enabled
an incremental in-patient bed reduction from 50 down to the present position
of 34. The proposed change to a Resource and Recovery Centre Model will
only involve ONE further bed reduction.

HALTON
Seeltem 3
WARRINGTON

See Item 3.

11.2. The Panel would also like clear understanding of what will happen to
St. Helens residents who utilise Wigan Services, some of whom are
registered with G.P’s in Ashton, Leigh or Wigan ?

PCT Responsible Commissioner Guidance is based upon G.P. registered
populations and not ordinarily resident, as is the case of Local Authorities.
This explains the ability of residents of one borough, registered with G.P.’s in
another borough able to access health services within that borough. This
position will remain unchanged. R

75



Page 86

HALTON SPECIFIC QUESTION

11.3. Can the PCT please clarify whether the funding in relation to Frodsham
and Helsby patients has been resolved ? :

This matter remains the subject of on-going discussions involving both 5
Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust Officers and Officers from Halton PCT. 5
Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust, as part of preparatory work for the
proposed New Models of Care, have identified that the current activity
exceeds the £130K p.a. received from West Cheshire PCT. 5BPT have
quantified the value of such activity to be in excess of £1M.

However at this stage West Cheshire are not accepting the case made by
5BPT and this remains the subject of on-going negotiations. The reality is
that costs incurred in the provision of services will not be recovered. The
focus will be to determine the value of the Service Level Agreement for the
remainder of this year and the future thereon.

Whilst this is an important issue, Halton PCT are focused upon the proposed
reduction that is Halton specific i.e. £1,899,123. In that whatever the
resolution is allied to West Cheshire, 5BPT are proposing reductions to the
cost of Halton wide services.




